- CHANAKYA

UNIVERSITY

| T,
k , Rooted in ideals = Ascending with ideas

' Annual
. Report

To
Karnataka State
Higher Education Council
Year 2024

el 9\ F. W F O ¥ Y Y Y W OFF N




-

A

b

A

- gggamam

R

3
(73 CHANAKYA
WSy UNIVERSITY

;
olc
° CU/RO-04/HEC-09(01)/2023 Date:19.09.2024

To,
> The Executive Director,

=
_ Karnataka State Higher Education Council,
3 Government of Karnataka
. Bengaluru
/ Respected Sir,
> Subject: Submission of Annual Returns & Audited financials of Chanakya University.
B \With reference to the above subject, we are submitting the Annual Returns of Chanakya University
. for 2024-25, in the prescribed format of the Karnataka State Higher Education Council.
You may contact us for any additional information or clarification.
%
Thanking you
)
Warm Regards
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g Encl:
" 1. Chanakya University Audited Financial Report for 2023-24.

2. Annual report 2024

l Chanakya University Global Campus
_NH - 648, Haraluru - Polanahalli
Near Kempegowda International Airport

pevanahalli, Bengaluru - 562165

www_chanakyauniversity.edu.in
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' UNIVERSITY

KARNATAKA STATE HIGHER EDUCATION COUNCIL (KSHEC)

ANNUAL RETURNS OF INFORMATION BY PRIVATE UNIVERSITIES IN THE STATE OF
KARNATAKA
(to be submitted in soft and hard copy form)

te University Act, the Karnataka State Higher Education Council (KSHEC)

As per the State Priva
al inspection and send a Report to the State Government on the University

shall conduct periodic
regarding:

(i) Standard of instruction for grant of Degree

(i) Quality of education

(iii) Commercialization of Higher Education, and

(iv) Contravention of provisions of the Act, if any

Towards meeting this requirement, the KSHEC has devised the following Annual Returns of
Information Format to be filled in and submitted to it by each Private University on or before June
30 of each year. This will form the basis for the KSHEC inspection of the University on a triennial

basis or earlier, as may be decided by the KSHEC.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
A Name of the University THE CHANAKYA UNIVERSITY
B Contact Details Postal Address Global Campus
of theUniversity Haraluru-Polanahalli, NH-648, (Near
Kempegowda  International  Airport)
Devanhalli Bengaluru Rural — 562165
Karnataka
Phone +91 95133 02880
Website www.chanakvauniversity.edu.in
T Name and Address Name DR. SUSHANT JOSHI
of theRegistrar Designation REGISTRAR
Postal Address Global Campus
Hataluru-Polanahalli, NH-648, (Neas
Kempﬁgﬂ\_vda International  Airport)
Devanhalli Bengaluru Rural — 562165
Karnataka
Mobile +91-9886635260
FEmail 1D registrar(@chanakyauniversity.eduin
D Title of the University Act and Year of THE CHANAKYA UNIVERSITY ACT,
Establishment 2021
_ ; KARNATAKA ACT NO. 37 OF 2021
F Period of Annual returns | Academic year 2023-24
Date of tlllng _2@ August 2024 = - |
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UNIVERSITY
F Academic Activities at | Constituent Colleges None
theUnivetsity in Additional Campus(s) |None
Numbers Faculties of study 1) SCHOOL OF ARTS, HUMANITIES
AND SOCIAL SCIENCES
2) SCHOOL OF MANAGEMENT]
SCIENCES
3) SCHOOL OF NATURAL SCIENCES
AND MATHEMATICS
4) SCHOOL OF LAW GOVERNANCE
AND PUBLIC POLICY
5 SCHOOL OF BIO-SCIENCES
Programs of Study UG PROGRAMME
1) BA (HONOURS)
2) BBA (HONOURS)
3) B COM (HHONOURS)
4) BCA (HIONOURS)
5) BSC (HONOURS)
6) BA-LLB (HONOURS)
7) BBA-LLB (HONOURS)
PG PROGRAMME
1) MCOM
2) M.SC (PSYCHOLOGY)
3) M.SC (DATA SCIENCE)
4) MBA
5 MCA
6) MA
> OTHER INFORMATION ON THE UNIVERSITY
A List of Newly launched in Ph.D 2023-24
Academic/Research the year 1. School of Arts, Humanities and Social
] es (Degrees Sciences
ngmm_ i 2. School of Law, Governance and Public
awarded discipline policy
wise) 3. School of Management Sciences
4. School of Biosciences
Continuing in the Not Applicable
Year
Closed in the year Not Applicable
B | Srudent ’Details are provided in Annexure -1
.DLF?JIS, UG PG Research Others
indicating 584 180 7 T
pllugmmmc Male Female 8 ST
wis€
429 360 14 15
OBC GM Differently Abled Others
40 4 02 0
S I
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UNIVERSITY
Regular/Permanent Temporary Contract Total
50 18 3 76
Assistant
Associate Professor/
C Teaching Staff Rentiesnr Professor Visting
Details Faculty
11 17 48 76
Male Female Others
51 25 0 76
Regular/Permanent Temporary Contract
62 8 50 120
Non-Teaching Technical Administration Others
D Staff Details 5 115 0 120
Male Female Others
75 45 0 120
Teaching Staff uG PG
E to Student ratio
1: 10 1:6
Teaching Staff
to Non- 0.63: 1
F teaching staff
ratio
3. DETAILS PERTAINING STANDARD OF INSTRUCTION FOR GRANT OF
DEGREE

% Theory Vs %0 Practical instruction in each

programme of study

Every School has its own autonomy to decide.
Universities minimum standard is 50% theory and
50% on Practical.

University follows formative 60% and 40%

Breakup of In-semester and End-semester

P rsummam e assessment system.
60:40 UG
60:40 PG
55

# Faculty with PhD qualification

# Faculty publications such as refereed journals,
conferences, books, book chapters, articles in the

)’(_’.31'

26 Research Outputs published, 3 Internal
Conference, 38 External
Conferences/Seminars/Workshops, 1 Book
Published by our faculty.

Provided as Annexure — 2

# patents filed / awarded in the year
# Students Graduating in UG programmes

NIL

University has started its academic only in the year
2022-23. The first batch is going to graduate in the
year 2026-27.

7 Students Graduating in PG programmes

University has started its academic only in the year

2022-23. The first batch is going to graduate in the
year 2024-25.

# students Graduating in Research Programmes

NIL oo

: '.‘ _".I‘I'
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Indicate whether technology-based learning is
enabled in the University

Yes
1) Digitally Equipped Classrooms
2) Library with access to E- Resources (Books and
Journals)
3) Multimedia Facility
4) Intranet and Internet Facility

# students eligible for placement in each programme

of study

Not Applicable as Univetsity has started its academic
only in the year 2022-23. The first batch is going to
oraduate in the year 2024-25, the students are eligible
for placement only in the year 2024-25.

# students placed in each programme of study

Not Applicable for this academic year

Maximum, Minimum and Average Compensations
offered in the campus placement process

Not Applicable for this academic year

# students qua]jﬁed in Competitive Exams such as
GATE, IAS, IES, IPS, GRE, and CAT

Not Applicable as the students have not graduated tll
date

# students opted for higher studies

Not Applicable

# student publications in the year

None

4. STEPS BEING TAKEN TO ENSURE QUALITY OF HIGHER EDUCATION

programme of study

A Average entry level petcentage of students in each|The Average entry level for all programme is

minimum 40%.

in each programme of study

B # students admitted Vs No. of students graduated|As the academic year started in 2022-23, Students

will graduate only in 2026-27

attended by the faculty in the year

o Sponsored research funding received in the year | Details are provided as Annexure — 3

D Consultancy revenue generated in the year NIL

E Indicate Faculty Attrition during the year 3 Permanent Employees resigned during the

academic year 2022-23

F Indicate student support programmes, such as Universities provided scholarships for the
tuition fee waiver and merit scholarships, students based on their income and merit basis.
introduced for improving quality

G Indicate whether outcome-based education is used All our programmes are designed
in the University based on Outcome-based Education

H Average experience of Faculty in each department| 10year

I # Conferences, wotkshops, and seminars IKS Department has conducted International
conducted in each department Conference associated with AICTE

] # Conferences, wotkshops, and seminars Details are provided as Annexure-4

5. STEPS BEING TAKEN TO AVOID COMMERCIALIZATION OF HIGHER EDUCATION

the year

A Fee fixed by the I'ee Regulation Committee
(FRC)for various programmes of study in the
university and dates of FRC meetings during

Details are provided as Annexure — 5

Year

B Total Fee collected from the students during the [The Total Fees Collected During the year —Rs.

6.61 Crores

\
'\-[?agt: 4 of}'.)!l_{,"
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The Total Expenditure during the year- Rs.

C Total expenditure incurred during the year
35.46 Crores
D Revenue earned from sponsored R&D, training [NIL
and consultancy activities
E Whether any capitation fee charged to students  [NO
for offering admissions?
F Revenue generated from other activities Total Revenue generated during the year Rs.

4.97 Crores

6. STEPS BEING TAKEN TO FULFILL THE PROVISIONS OF THE UNIVERSITY

ACT

A Whether Officers of the University have been YES, AS PER THE CHANAKYA
nominated / appointed as per the provisions of [UNIVERSITY ACT 2021 KARNATAKA ACT|
the Act INO. 37 OF 2021

B Whether Authorities of the University have been [YES, AS PER THE CHANAICY A
formed as per the provisions of the Act UNIVERSITY ACT 2021 KARNATAKA ACT|

INO. 37 OF 2021

C Number of meetings and dates of the meetings ~ [Details are provided as Annexure — 6
of the various Authorities of the University
during the Year

D Whether specified percentage of seats reserved  [The University has provided more than 60%
for candidates from Karnataka State to be filled ~ [seats to Non- technical programmes for
throughcommon entrance examination [<arnataka StaFe students, for technical
conducted by the State Government as PEOSIALIMES like P_GCET and CET the
sinndated o the Actd university is following the norms of the state.

E Indicate the composition of the Fee Regulation  [Details are provided as Annexure — 5
Committee and details of the meetings held
during the year

F | Whether any development fee is collected from | NIL

the students?

G Contributions received from other soutces NIL
towards development fund

H Interest Income received from Permanent Total Interest Income received from
Statutory Endowment Fund Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund -

1,78,75,000
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7. ANY OTHER INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF THE ANNUAL RETURNS

A Whether the scales of pay proposed by the YES
Statutory Regulatory Authority adopted in the
University forTeaching and Non-teaching staff
B Contribution to extension including institutional [Details are Provided as Annexure- 7
social responsibility in the year
% Major achievements of the University in the year [Details are Provided as Annexure-7
D Any other relevant information in support of Details are Provide as Annexure — 7
Annual Returns
Date 20-09-2024

Place

DEVANHALLI - BANGALORE
RURAL

Signature of the Registrar with seal of the

University

GISTRAR=——

CHANAKY A UNIVERSITY
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Annexure-1
| UG-Programs PG-Programs
Row Labels « femal te Grand T,
B ;‘52.2._"._ > _._:ﬂ‘_’ e — 5'_“’_‘%_ !T?_I':_%. I_To‘::;;nls + female male Grand Total
B.Com 5 7 13 202 . 1
BA un 3 14 MSc 3 1 4
BBA 8 10 18 M.Com § 1 7
ECA u29 43 MSc Psychalo
-2023 ) w3 250 } yenology yo1 6
"~ BSc. 3 2 5 7 - N | . .
B.Com 18 20 38 MSc A 12 3
BA 16 16 32 MBA 2% 8 80
BA (EMB) 13 9 22 ~ McA NN 50
BA., LLB{Hons) 12 1 23 G ——r
i % @ P rand Total 81 99 180
BBA., LLB(Hons) 8 [ 14
BCA 24 39 63
-12024 S =L W 26
" B.Com 21 24 45
BA 157 2
-' BA (EMB) 20 10 30
> BA., LLB{Hons) 12 16 28
4 BBA 11 45
BBA., LLB(Hons) 13 19 32
"- » BCA 19 25 4
X / Erad Toul 267 317 584
h ' Ph.D/ Research Programs Other Programs
‘i) Rowlabels ~femle  mae GndTotdl Rowlabels - female _mae GrandTodl
i R T R w418
« =y  DoctorofPhilosaphy 46 o ~ Fellowship ___ B .1 B
' Grand Total Tk 10 Grand Total B 7 15
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Annexure — 2

RESEARCH AT CHANAKYA UNIVERSITY
Material for the Research webpage

1. Unleashing the Power of Research

Research at Chanakya University is inspired by its Purpose— ‘creating knowledge and transformative
leaders for holistic development’. The University has imbibed its liberal education framework from the
new National Education Policy to create an environment of constant curiosity emanating from concern
towards issues that need sustainable solutions. Finding such solutions requires the generation of sound
evidence sourced from our Scriptures to collecting from the ground, leading to practical

recommendations, backed by replicable interventions.

2. Thrust Areas

is interdiscil?linarity in research across the Schools and Centres of the University
four thrust areas have been identified, in addition to the individual or School-based Research that také
place simultaneously; details can be seen in the Research Support Guidelines. These include-
|. Well-being — enhancing universal well-being among all living organisms at the individual,
community and population levels across geographies
Cultures of Learning — finding solutions to current issues through the study, documentation
and exploration of historical and contemporary cultures
3. Governance — ensuring efficient, effective and equitable service delivery through institution
building, community cooperation, pooling of common resources
4. Technology Development and Application - developing innovative technological tools for
accurate analysis and better modelling leading to real-time based recommendations.

To ensure that there

2

2.1 Publications

Research Arficles

Dr. Bhavani.M.R

Author

School School of Commerce and Management

Title Challenges and Opportunities in Seafood Marketing: An Empiri iy
Seafood Industry Perspective £ pirical Study from the

Journal Journal of Survey in Fisheries Sciences (Indexed in Scopus, Web of Science)

year of Publication 2023
Co-Author/s Dr. Shwetha Tiwari, Dr. Yashodha, Dr. Samir, Dr. Trilochan

et MALENT 2168-7487
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Author
School
Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author
School
Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author
School
Title

Journal
Year of Publication

Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN
Link

Author
School
Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author
School
Title

Journal o
year of Publication

Co-Author/s
1SBN/ISSN
Link

o) CHANAKYA

UNIVERSITY

N5

Dr. V Rajesh Kumar

School of Management Sciences

Determinants of Profitability of Indian Telecommunication
Companies

Asian Journal of Management

2022

0976-495X(Print) & 2321-5763 (Online)
https://ajmjournal.com/AbstractView.aspx?PID=2022-13-2-5

Dr. V Rajesh Kumar

School of Management Sciences

Testing of Performance Measures on Mutual Fund Equity Schemes: An
Empirical Evidence in India

AIMS International Journal of Management

2022

Manjunatha T, Shruthi M P

1939-7011

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/371654020

Dr. V. Rajesh Kumar

School of Management Sciences

Testing of Performance Measures on Mutual Fund Debt Schemes: An
Empirical Evidence in India

Pacific Business Review (International)

2022

Shruthi M P, Manjunatha T

0974-438X(P)

http://www.pbr.co.in/2022/2022 month/November/1.pdf

Sri. Hemanth N V

Physical Education and Sports, SAHSS

Exploring the emotional maturity of post graduate students

International journal of health, Physical Education & Computer science in
Sports

2022

2231-3265

Sri. Hemanth N V

Physical Education and Sports, SAHSS
Psychological well-being among university students
Education and Society (UGC Care listed)

2023

2278-6864

5kage 9 0f 327
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Author
School
Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author

School

Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Authotr/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author

School

Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author
School
Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
[SBN/ISSN

Link

Author

School

Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author’s
[SBN/I SSN

[.ink

CHANAKYA
UNIVERSITY

Dr. Nandha Kumar K G

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Assessment of the Employees’ Work-life Balance during COVID-19
Pandemic: An Artificial Neural Network Approach

Indian Journal of Natural Sciences

April, 2023

Vijayalakshmi S, Nirmala T, Subasree Vanamali R

0976 — 0997 (Print)

https:/tnsroindia.org.in/ JOURNAL/issue77/ISSUE%2077%20APRIL%2020
239420-%20FRONT%20PAGE%2001.pdf (pp. 54580-54590)

Dr. Nandha Kumar K G

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Intelligent Cloud Assistance for Healthcare Sectors

International Journal of Cloud Computing

February, 2023

A. Jayanthiladevi, P.S. Aithal, K. Krishna Prasad, Manivel Kandasamy
2043-9997 (Online), 2043-9989 (Print)
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/368269251 _Intelligent cloud assis
tance for healthcare sectors

K A Venkatesh

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Object detection on robosoccer environment using CNN
Indonesian Journal of Electrical Engineering & Computer Science
2023

Diana Steffi, Shilpa Mehta

2502-4752
https://ijeecs.iaescore.com/index.php/1J EECS/article/view/29511

K A Venkatesh

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Cloud Service Provider Selection Using Fuzzy Data Envelopment Analysis
Based on SMI Attributes

[nternational Journal of Fuzzy System Applications

2022

Thasni Thaha, Kalaiarasan C.

ISSN: 2156-177X; EISSN: 2156-1761
https://ideas.repec.org/a/igg/ifsa00/v11y2022i4p1-24 himl

K A Venkatesh

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences
The Future of Computer Assisted Education
Indian Journal of Natural Sciences

2022

Kartik, Mahalakshmi

0976 — 0997 (Print)

https://www.researchgate.net C P
/publication/
uter_Assisted Fducation 1306618734 The Future of SomP
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Author

School

Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
[SBN/ISSN

Link

Author

School

Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author

School

Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author
School

Title
Journal
Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN
Link

Author
School

Title

Journal
Year of Publication

Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

' UNIVERSITY

K A Venkatesh

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

The Minimum Absolute deviation covering distance energy of graphs
American Institute of Physics

2023

M V Chakradhar, D Venkata Lakshmi N, N Sriman Narayana

Dol: 10.1063.5.0143114
https://pubs.aip.org/aip/acp/article-abstract/2707/1/020009/2889607/The-
minimum-absolute-deviation-covering-distance?redirectedFrom=fulltext

K A Venkatesh

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Absolute deviation Symmetric division degree energy of graphs
American Institute of Physics

2023

M V Chakradhar, B Satyanarayana, N Sriman Narayana

Doi: 10.1063.5.0143115

https://pubs.aip.org/aip/acp/article-
abstract/2707/1/020010/2889608/Absolute-deviation-symmetric-division-
degree?redirectedFrom=fulltext

K A Venkatesh

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Minimum mean covering Gutman energy of certain graphs
Journal of Interdisciplinary Mathematics

2023

M V Chakradhar, D Venkata Lakshmi N, N Sriman Narayana
DOI: 10.47974/J1IM-1648 (ISSN 0972-0502)
https://www.tarupublications.com/doi/10.47974/JIM-1648

Ramakrishna Pejathaya

Centre for Indian Knowledge Systems, SAHSS

Representation of the midnight sun in Greek and Indian ast i

Indian Journal of History of Science AR

2022

Sri. Vinay lyer

2454-9991

https://cahc.jainuniversity.ac.in/assets/ijhs/57 4 L.pdf

K A Venkatesh

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

XAl-Based Student Performance Prediction: Peelip

LSTM and Random Forest’s Black Boxes

SN Computer Science, Springer Verlag

2023

Kartik N., Mahalakshmi R.

2661-8907

https:/link.springer.com/article/ /
nger.com/article/10.1007, 542979'023'020?0-}1
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Author

School

Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s

ISBN/ISSN
Link

Author
School
Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author
School
Title

Journal

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author
School
Title

Journal
Year of Publication

Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN
Link

Author
School
Title

Journal
Year of Publication

Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN
Link

CHANAKYA
UNIVERSITY

Chaithanya R

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Role of Soil Bacteria in Plant Nutrition - Current and Future Aspects

journal for ReAttach Therapy and Developmental Diversities

2023

Ratna Kumari BM, Asha Kademane, Seethalaxmi R, Kannan K, Ruchita
Shrivastava and Sharangouda J. Patil

eISSN: 2589-7799
https://irtdd.com/ index.php/journal/article/view/2 197

Bharath Setturu

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Environmental Consequences in the Neighbourhood of Rapid Unplanned
Urbanisation in Bangalore City

Advances in Environmental and Engineering Research

2023

TV Ramachandra, Tulika Mondal, Setturu Bharath, Bharath H Aithal
10.21926/aeer.2304052
https://www.lidsen.com/journals/acer/acer-04-04-052

Ajay Chandra

School of Arts, Humanities, and Social Sciences

Healthcare Policies to Eliminate Neglected Tropical Diseases (NTDs) in
India: A Roadmap

International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health
2023

S. D. Sreeganga, Nibedita Rath, Arkalgud Ramaprasad

1660-4601
https://www.mdpi.com/1660-4601/20/1 9/6842

Ajay Chandra

School of Arts, Humanities, and Social Sciences

Mental healthcare systems research during COVID-19: Lessons for shifting
the paradigm post COVID-19

Urban Governance, Elsevier

2024

S. D. Sreeganga, Arkalgud Ramaprasad

2667-3800
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2664328624000056

Ramakrishna Pejathaya

Centre for Indian Knowledge Systems, SAHSS

Grahanamukura — A Sixteenth Century Indian Manual for The Calculation of
Eclipses

Journal of Astronomical History and Heritage

2024

B.S. Shylaja, Seetharama Javagal

1440-2807

https://www.sciengine.com/JAHH/doi/10.3724/SP.J.1440-
2807.2024.01.12:JSESSIONID=d4a25efb-9d73-48dd-95df-bg119812a2ce
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Book Chapters

Author
School
Title

Book

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

Link

Author

School
Title
B(_\[ Ilt

Year of Publication
Co-Author/s
ISBN/ISSN

[Link

Bharath Setturu

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Prudent Management of Protected Areas in India Through Virtual Spatial
Decision Support System (pp. 357-369)

Biodiversity Hotspot of the Western Ghats and Sri Lanka

2024

TV Ramachandra

E-Book ISBN: 9781003408758
https://www.appleacademicpress.com/biodiversity-hotspot-of-the-western-
ghats-and-sri-lanka-/9781774913758

Krishnan R

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

LEnhanced Smart Irrigation using Sensors: A Statistical Case Study

Utilizing Al and Smart Technology 1o Improve Sustainability in
E“llt‘»]ll'ﬁllcul‘ahi]l

2024

N, Ambika

1ISBN13: 0708360318423
hitps://www.igi-global.com/chapter/enhanced-smart-irrigation-using=
sensors/342301

Chanakya University Research Output Series (ROS)

Series No.
Author
Title

Series No.
Author
Title

Series No.
Author
Title

Series No.
Author
Title

Series No.
Author
Title

geries No.
Author
Title

Working Paper CU-ROS/2023-24/WP-001

P. Srilekha
Use of medicinal plants through sacrificial fire to treat Tuberculosis: A

review

Working Paper CU-ROS/2023-24/WP-002

R. Manasa
Rejuvenating the ancient Indian food preservation methods: A critical

analysis

Working Paper CU-ROS/2023-24/WP-003

K.V. Raju, R. Manasa, P. Srilekha

Traditional medicine to impart immunity and biological methods to scale up
secondary metabolites: A Study on COVID-19

Working Paper CU-ROS/2023-24/WP-004
S. Saravanan
Innovative Insurance Management by Ancient Tamil Literature Thirukkural

Working Paper CU-ROS/2023-24/WP-005

M.G. Chandrakanth

Indigenization in teaching Social Sciences: Role Mythol istor
Culture and Tradition S

Working Paper CU-R0S/2023-24/WP-006
Madhavi R, Shalini, Mamta Pharswan
A study on fintech and the banking sector: an end user perspective

57 i)
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Series No. Case Study CU-ROS/2023-24/CS-001

Author V. Rajesh Kumar
Reliance Industries Limited: s there a likelihood of manipulation in its

Title
financial statements?
Series No. Research Monograph CU-R0OS/2023-24/RM-001
Author Saurabh Pratap Singh, K.V. Raju
Title Increasing the non-farm employment in Uttar Pradesh: A Policy Analysis
Series No. Research Monograph CU-ROS/2023-24/RM-002
Author M.K. Sridhar
Title Management in Common Man: Concept and the way forward
Series No. Research Monograph CU-ROS/2023-24/RM-003
Author Tapas Bhattacharyya
Title Soils in Hindu Scriptures (including Jainism, Buddhism and Sikhism)
Series No. Research Monograph CU-R0OS/2023-24/RM-004
Author R.S. Deshpande
Title Agriculture, Culture and Society
Series No. Research Monograph CU-R0OS/2023-24/RM-0035
Author Basheer Ahmed
Title Islam and Health

2.2 Faculty Research Quests

Many of our Faculty members have their own research quests to achieve solutions to concerns that they
have been observing and experiencing. Let’s listen, and work with them!

Dr. Bharath Setturu says- “My primary research interest is in “Spatial Informatics” and “Computer
Science applications”, focusing on multidisciplinary domains. Spatial informatics (Spatial Data
Science) is emerging as a powerful field of research which integrates geography, data science
algorithms, and technology. The advancement of computing capabilities and sound data availability
aid in extracting meaningful insights and decision-making. Spatial data science spans ils application
in multiple domains such as region planning (urban/rural), environmental conservation, natural
resources monitoring, natural disaster management, transportation, public health, and e-governance,
ot limited to the listed areas but has vast potential. Research in this domain will play a significant role

solving societal problems and aid in making informed decisions.”

in
Prof. Satyavolu Srinivas Rao cites- “Geometric Physics applies modern (differential) geometry o
formulate and use physical theories. Classical Mechanics, Electromagnetism, General Relativity are
all stated in terms of manifolds, differential forms and connections. Quantum mechanics involves Lie
algebras. More recently, Quantum Field Theory brings in Lie algebroids. I was Coinvestigator in the
SERB Project "Nonlinear algebra and Lie algebroid approaches to Quantum Field Theory" (SERB file
no ECR/2015/000081). Various Brackets, Algebroids and Cohomologies arise in a physical context
Jsomorphism of cohomologies using Hochschild-Kostant-Rosenberg techniques is the specific probl em
under investigation. Preliminary results are in the preprint arXiv:1607.00807v1. "

Sri Saurav Sarmah explains- "My area of research is the definition and measurement of national power
and its impact on foreign policy. Right now, I am working on (i) the impr)r{a.;?ce of sofi power in (57:}:(1'.9
foreign policy. (i) a Kautilyan perspective on national power and (iii) !'?.?t'f:’.";‘?mirmuf r’nd?r for
measurement of 'national power and its different dimensions'.” o

NN
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Dr. Nandha Kumar KG expounds- “My primary research interest is applying Artificial Neural
blems (classification, prediction, clustering, association rules). It includes

Networks to Data Mining pro
some specific subdomains such as Customizing the ANN, Optimizing the ANN, Deep learning,

Applications of ANN in Business, Entertainment, Psychology and Education. Additionally, 1 am
interested in handling unstructured and semi-structured big data (preprocessing).”

Ms. Chaitanya R conveys- “My research focuses on leveraging soil bioremediation techniques 1o
combat the pervasive issue of heavy metal pollution in agricultural land. In the process of exploring
-ing soil-borne microorganisms to restore soil health sustainably and

innovative approaches utili
economically. By harnessing the natural capabilities of these microbes, I aim to develop efficient and

eco-friendly solutions for remediation, mitigating secondary pollution risks associated with
conventional methods. Through this work, 1 strive to contribute to the preservation of vital agricultural

resources and promole a healthier environment for current and future generations. v

Dr. Krishnan R explains- "My main research interest is in the area of Computer Vision. My research
area mainly focuses on detection of topographical features from satellite imagery. In my rese areh T
used many images in the area of medical, geographical and topographical. Considered many d{ﬁerén:
categories of images [0 apply detection and classification algorithms. 1 also use different sim ulators /
programming languages & tools for spatial image processing. In nty research, computer vision mainly
focuses on feature extraction and detection; also applied many statistical methods for detection and
evaluation. Other areas of research are scientific evaluation of educational paradigm, mythological

aspects of different religions and astrological parameters.”

Dr. Priyadarshan Kinatukara is interested in “understanding mechanisms regulating lipid diversity,
particularly chirality, at various scales — organismal, cellular, and molecular with a long-term goal to

examine how lipid diversity can influence gut microbial populations for insights into lifestyle

disorders.”

QLM focuses on “developing biomedical devices and entrepreneurship lo translate the
research outcome from bench to bedside. My current research is based on designing unigue
nano/microbots for therapeutic purposes. These nano/microbots are efficient, nontoxic systems and can

ific task in the body. The potential benefits of using these nano/microbots

be tailored to perform a spec
in medical procedures are significant, including reduced invasiveness, improved precision, and

enhanced patient comfort. Furthermore, the inaccessible sites located deeply in the body can be

achieved with the help of these micro/nanobots by applying external forces such as magnetic or electric

fields. These tiny medical nanobots can perform assigned tasks inside the body and clear out from the

body without causing adverse effects.”

Dr. Che tan Singai explains- “My areas of research interesis are aligned to the domain of public policy,

international relations, education sociology and policy, air and space law and human rights. My
acadentic pursuits led me to Jawaharlal Nehru University (JNU), New Delhi, where 1 pursued an MPhil

in Law and Governance, followed by a Master's in Political Science from the Centre for Political
Studies at JNU. My academic horizons expanded further with the prestigious Erasmus Mimdus
Scholarship, which allowed me to embark on a transformative journey across the Universit ..of London
(UK), University of Aarhus (Denmark), and Universily of Deusto (Spain), delving into to f"};:e issues of
education sociology and politics; vocational in education along with internationalization of/i Slh'ef r
educalion. Through my research, I explore the intricacies of law, policy and gme”- 3;3' Qprin rg T?;

O il &7 developing societies. My publications offer analyses uf'poe'icp ﬁm??ﬂ?r} e ;j‘ipec:fa f 'f’.
jmplemema!fan for issues related to education system, air and spacé Vs B If:;;:é ‘sm:;:f }‘b:eig;

policy analysis, contributing valuable inputs to the educators, policymakers, and researchers.”

on Insolvency, B“’?k""P‘;c-‘J' _L};’f’ epreneurship and Farmers as Entrepreneurs. In the last few years 1
J the Board of Directors of Farmer Producer companies and have found interest in

Dr. _Apl_[']_(um_ﬂ[ (arag ]‘llghllgh'{s- ";Mﬁ: PhD s in f}!{.’_ﬁt’fﬂ’ Of..ﬁ??t???ciai devivatives. I continueto res’em'ch

.!'H.? Ve ”'(,?f?‘?(f
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researching on sustainable Entrepreneurship. To sum up, I am interested in Financial Derivatives,
Rural Entrepreneurship and the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code.”

_l\ﬁ__M_Ll_m_!‘DQQL.J_ﬂﬂH’_V_‘ points out- "My primary area of interest lies in Corporate Governance and
Insolvency Law. Corporate governance Is pivotal in promoting the longevily of corporations, as it
ensures the creation of custainable organizations. The increased failures of corporates have highlighted
the critical role of corporate governance. Furthermore, the time has come to review the insolvency
system to address financial distress and promote the timely resolution of stressed assets. My research
will focus on examining the effectiveness and efficiency of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code of 2016,
its conformity with international insolvency law standards, and the role of corporate governance

practices in preventing corporate Jfailures."

Ms. Anusha Virupannavar highlights- “My interest lies in the areas of Environmental Law and
Constitutional law. Right to clean environment is a fundamental right under the Constitution. To realize

the environmental rights judicial and quasi-judicial bodies are established. The National Green
Tribunal is vested with the Jjurisdiction to take matters substantially related to environment. My
research dwells deeper into the functions of the Tribunal and its effectiveness compared to other

countries.”

Dr, Priyanka Dwivedi observes- “My research lies at the intersections of sociology, gender studies,
organization studies and science, tech & society studies. I apply an interdisciplinary theoretical and
methodological lens to examine issues related to gender dynamics across three realms. Firstly, I built
on mixed methods approach to examine the production of gender subjectivities through HR polices and
management communications in the work-life space. Secondly, I engage with the issues of diversity,
equity and inclusion (DEI) to examine the DEI concept as il emerges through historical scientific
conceptions into contemporary realms of governance, education, and industry. Thirdly, in the emerging
area of Al technologies, 1 apply critical feminist lens to examine how technology infrastructures and
technoscientific practices shape, perpetuate, and manage the gender bias, discrimination and inequality

in social life and environments. %

Dr. Naveen Bhat discloses- “Language is the first effective tool of information and has been functioning
since the beginning of human civilization. Here in India, the language is regarded as a legitimate means
of Imowledge (; Pramana), rather than just a tool for information gathering. Languages, their structure,
their interconnectedness, their technicality, their functionality, and translation studies are the major
areas of my research interests. Studies in Paninian grammar (Sanskrit) and manuscript-ology come
handy for me in working and guiding research in this domain. Sanskrit and Kannada literature are the

other two areas of my research quest.”

_DI__M&LNI— R. presents- “My research centres on exploring how organizations can strategically
innovate their business models to sustain competitive advantage in dynamic environments. I am

articularly interested in understanding the interplay between leadership decisions and the evolution
of business models, and how strategic choices can drive long-term success in the face of industry
disruptions. This inquiry delves into questions such as: How do leaders identify and implement novel
pusiness model inovations? What strategic frameworks can support resilience and adaptability? By
examining these dimensions, my work aims to contribute to the development of robust strategies that
foster sus tained organizational growth and leadership in an ever-changing markeiplace.”

3. Research Chairs

Two prestigious Research Chairs have been established on International Relations and Education that
take their strengths from both India’s civilizational rootedness and current global presence

3.1 Subash e : Bose Chaie Professorship on International . Relations-
anakyauniversity.edu.in/research-chairs/subash-chandra-bose-chair-professorship-on-

https://ch
international-relations- slgpp/
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3.2 Dr. Ramdas Pai Chair on Education- https://chanakyauniversity.edu.in/research-chairs/libraries-dr-

~——y ramdas-pai-chair-in-education/

1

' 4. Centres of Excellence

1 5o on
Il The University houses two Centres of Excellence that aim to address current issues and explore
_ knowledge through the seamless intertwining of both Indian and Contemporary Knowledge Systems
= 4.1 Centre for Indian Knowledge Systems- https://chanakyauniversity.edu.in/center-for-

) excellence/centre-for-indian-knowledge-systems/

A 4.2 Centre for Study of Cultures- https://chanakyauniversity.edu.in/center-for-excellence/centre-for-

study-of-cultures/
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Annexure-3

5. Research Experience

What do our faculty members engage in? What would they like to pursue? Here is a glimpse of their
engagement with the World of Research...

5.1 Projects

Title

Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)
Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

Title

Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)
Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

Title

Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)
Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

Title

Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)
Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

Title .
Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)

Political Concepts in Ramayana, Mahabharata and Arthashastra
Dr Vinayak Rajat Bhat

School of Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences

Sri Saurav Sarmah, Dr Charu Ratna Dubey

IKS Division of MoE@ AICTE

Z9,60,000

2 years

January 2023

Project on the Evaluation of the KSSFCL’s DCBM Course
Dr. Sandeep Nair

School of Management Sciences

Dr. Bhavani M.R, Dr. Sushant Joshi

Karnataka State Souharda Federal Cooperative Limited
22,90,000

6 months

2022

Obstacles (Upadhis) in Reading and Interpreting Indian texts:
Alternative Possibilities from Indian Traditions

Dr. Ashwini B. Desai

School of Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences

Dr. Tilak M. Rao

[KS Division of AICTE, Ministry of Education, Government of India
Z9,60,000

2 years

January 2023

Translation Project

Sri. M.S. Chaitra

School of Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences

Dr. Ashwini B. Desai, Dr. Harshith Joseph and Dr. Tilak M. Rao
Bharatiya Bhasha Samiti, Ministry of Education, Gol '
Z76,03,225

6 months

Oct2022-Mar2023

Centre for Indian Knowledge Systems

Dr. Vinayachandra Banavathy

School of Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences

Dr. Ramakrishna Pejathaya and Dr. Vinayak Rajat Bhat

|| Page 18}_95?2
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Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

Title

Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)
Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

Title

Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)
Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

Title

Principal investigator
School

Co-PI's (if any)
Sponsoring agency
Project Amount
Duration

Start date

IKS Division of AICTE, Ministry of Education, Government of India
Z 31.80,000

2 years

2022

A 3-Credit MOOC on The Art and Science of Avadhanam
Dr. Ramakrishna Pejathaya

School of Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences

Ms. Yogita Chhatre, Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham
Central Sanskrit University, New Delhi

Rs. 9,00,000

1 year

June 2023

Financial Analysis of Select Cooperative Societies and Strategies for
Improvement, Growth and Sustenance )

Dr. V Rajesh Kumar

School of Management Sciences

Dr. Anilkumar Garag, Sri. Praphulla Chandra

Karnataka State Souharda Federal Cooperative Limited

Rs. 2,90,000

6 months

July 2023

Three 4-credit MOQC courses i i
Lot on Indian Knowledge Systems in
Dr. Vinayak Rajat Bhat

School of Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences

Dr. Venkata Raghavan, IIT Bhubaneshwar

AICTE

10 months

July 2023

: Page 19 of 3l2



v T

Research enhancing News...

Dr. Naveen Bhat successfully ob
Vishwa Vidyapeetham.

Research generating Events

@i ===
Psychophyla:ds

ession with

Dr M V Vasudevan
mfddmscamvlb wAClinie, Califomia
mmbn.mumdmh:mmdaumnlcmda
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Annexure-4

tained an extramural research grant from the prestigious Amrita

r‘t-.\I "LA, ‘1
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MCELLOR'S AWARLD FOR EXTRAMURAL GRANT
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9 CHANAKYA school of
/— ( UNIVERSITY  BioSciences
- A Special Lecture on

The History of
Biomedical Sciences

in India

By
Dr. Shekhar Mande

Former DG, CSIIL

Distinguished B :
Biainformatics Centre
Savitribai Phule Pune University

10:30 -11:30 AM :
2 Aug 2 Floor, Room 230
2024 chanakyaUniversity
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A Special Lecture on National Philosophers’ Day

Decolonising

SOCia]- SCienCES special lecture on

james Mill, Colonialism MetathSiCS as

and Contemporary India M t h s, i,
etaphor Q=an

- Adishankaracaryaandthe]deauf India ¢ N 43

pr. Kundan Singh

Hindu University of America

07 Aug ;f:;;;;:;fﬂ - Dr. Shonaleeka Kaul

2024 Chanakya University :‘:me rvesi S, Schaol ol beo sl S ene

12:00 prm - 1:00 prm
Raom Ne. 231
Chanakya University

Contact Details
" 2 9 July
2024

goham Deshimud
sahsm d@chanal
7379534996

S

kyaunivertity edu

change Forum (REF)

hange Forum (REF)isa fortnightly talk series that encourages cross learning among

Ll Members and Research gcholars cutting across.Schools and Centres. Initiated in early 2024,
ined and practices observed/experienced in an

the Forum offers a venue for exchange of knowledge ga :
inclusive space where Faculty members and Researchers share their learnings from N ———

/ workshops / conferences / seminars / field wor_!ff _ ublicq}jggs / _worksfijn- rogress.

The Research EX
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Dr. Bharath Setturu tracing the urb

6. Research Support

Research at Chanakya University is fueled by t
in place to ensure quality and ethics.

6.1 The Guidelines
6.1.1 The Research Support Guidelines provides details - https://chanakyauniversit edwin/wp- |

content/u loads/2024/06/Research-Support-Guidelines-2023.pdl ‘
6.2 The Programmes- The PhD Programme, The Post Doctoral Fellowship Programme

6.3 The People- Details of Research Supervisors and Research Scholars

an growth of Bengaluru

he dynamic structures and processes that have been put

\'1 !v{’age 22 of/32)
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" ~?§§ Chanakya University

3
(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)
5 )
Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2023 {Provisional)
: * {Amounts in %)
- Particulars Note Ason
9 31st Mar 2023
Source of Fund
> Restricted Fund 2 2,95,70,82,802
. General Fund 3 )
>
Current Liabilities & Provisions 4 8,07,04,277
s
Total 3,03,77,87,078
I-“'.J
Application of Fund
w2 Properties, Plants & Equipment
Tangible Assets 5 53,16,54,494
] Intangible Assets 5 6,30,666
Capital Work-In-Progress 5 1,40,92,48,716
>N
Investments
- Long term 6 15,17,00,000
’ Short term 47,99,96,498
3 Current Assets 24,32,69,759
A Loans, Advances & Deposits 22,12,86,946
- Total 3,03,77,87,078
7 Significant Accounting Palicies & Notes To Accounts 1

For and on behalf of Board

place; Bangalore
pate: 7] 01 | 2023,

Cr #
W e
0
AL

_————

|
N
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Chanakya University

2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

|

i ==

lE;tablished under the Chanakya University Act,

Income And Expanditure Account {Provisional)

(Amounts In T}
For the period from March 6, 2022 to March 31, 2023 | ,
. ok Restricted Funds ¢
Particluar e i
i Designated
scholarships % CSR & Non-CSR Bafiaime Toral \ ‘
Fund =
Income '
Academic Receipts 9 41,94,500 28,31,317 70,25,817 2
Other Incomes 10 89,48,832 72,93,667 1,62,42,499 ]
- Total (A) 41,94,500 | 89,48,832 - 1,01,24,984 2,32,68,316
P Bl 3 g =i 90y 3]
Expenditure l
Sraff Payments & Benefits 11 41,594,500 | 89,48,832 6,05,36,144 7.36,79,476 e
12 o202, 2202y .
mdemicIExpenses . 1,19,90,902 1,19,90,902 1
Depreciation & amaortization 5 el st 1. 04: i
| Expenses 13 o ,04,85, 1|
General EXpe 12,21,03,970 12,21,03,970 3
Total [B) 21,94,500 | 29,48,832 — s
— : 8 20,50,97,922 21,82,41,254 1]
Excess of Incame over Expenditure (A-B) N . 2
= (19,49,72,938) (19,49,72,938) o
Amartization of Deficit to Restricted Fund - =
19,49,72,938 (19,29,72,938) - A
surplus/(Deficit) Carried to the Funds - . ‘]
(19,49,72,938) . (19,49,72,938) ,
Significant Accaunting Palicies & Notes Ta Accounts 1 'ﬂ
[ ]
For and on behalf of Board = s -

Place: BanTlm
pate: 171 O"llélcia::,




Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

T CH 31, 202 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Background
The C i 'Uni ! i
hanakya University ( University') was incorporated under "The Chanakya University Act, 2021 (Karnataka A
, ataka Act No.37 of

2021) o ; .
s.e.;zr:ta:a:r::ft::;;?::?LE:T:?:::,SJ:CEWEd ‘ts assent on October 11, 2021, vide Parlamentary affairs & Legislati
Al e son on et 0'5 g s 2021, B_E"galur.u, dated October 11, 2021 and was incorporated as arlg e
! urred certain expenses e,rltereci in:: ae':;'e for S‘-'{C'a' St_UdIES (CESS) acted as a sponsoring body of the University :;t:{ﬁ:m
the University, entered i:ﬂﬂ certain congt eme""is including those with donors, obtained requisite approvals f i -
g # ; racts with vendors and contractors for creating inf B
University anc! toak all o.ther actions necessary or incidental there to. All assets and liabiliti . fa'structure for running the
connection with the University vested in the latter persuant to the said act. A memora d es acquired/contracted by CESS in
same with effect from April 1, 2022. In terms of this memorandum, the benefits of all it s eepcuted e mmallee e
and obligations which CESS had in relation to the University was also tra nsferred to it SRR AEr RIS, SoMtiE R et

Significant Accounting Policies

f financial Statements
nts are pr istori
prepared under the historical cost convention and on the accrual basis of accounti
unting in

lly Accepted Accounting Princi i
ples (GAAP) in India. These financi
y the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl). cial statements comply with the

Basis of preparation 0
The financial stateme
accordance with Generd
Accounting Standards issued b

Use of Estimates:
The preparation of the financial statements in confo i i
rmity with the generally acce i
pted accounting princi i
ples requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported a

the year and assets/liabilities/disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the end of the re f":tl‘ll'lts ol reventias expenses oy

that the estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are prudent reasonat?lo Ing s, Marmgement ieienes

cur‘rent events & actions. Although these estimates are based on the managerlnent’s be :kand A

actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the out::ames nﬂjﬁ]ﬁdge of cu‘rrent ERBRIAE

the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Difference between the actz;ﬁsq:r::neita' ""f:te”al s w
imates are recognized in

the period in which the same are known / materialized.

Fined Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated i
impairment losses, if an
R y. The

Cost of assets compris:‘es of cost of acquisition and all costs directly attributable to bringing th
for its intended use. Fixed assets received free of cost or donation are carried at nomi g| e e
. _ : i na
Capital work-m—pmgl:ess comprises of all directly attributable costs of bringing the ﬁxed:alue o
their intended US€, till the date of asset being put to use. Advances paid to acquire ﬁxecslsaets Bt || TR
ssets at the repaortin
g date have

been included under 'Laans and Advances',

Depreclation:
pepreciation is provi
fFollowing table shows
Asset Category

ded on SFrarght Line Me.thod on the estimated useful life of the as !
the estimated useful life of the asset under each catego et epestimated by St monagemect
ry: '

Us i
eful Life (in years) Rate of Depreciation

' \S& BANGALORE)

b



Lease hold rights in land Over the period of
lease

Buildings 30 3.33%
Computers 3 33.33%
Software 3 33.33%
Equipments 5 20.00%
Furniture 8 12.50%
Vehicles 8 12.50%
Library Books 1 100.00%
Electrical Fittings 10 10.00%
Lab Equipment 5 20.00%

Utensils purchased for canteen and hostel are being expensed out in the year of acquisition.
Depreciation on assets is provided prorata from the date of addition over the useful life mentioned above. Depreciation on
assets sold/discarded/disposal is recognised till the date of sale/discarding/disposal.

Leases taken by the University:
Leases are classified as finance or operating leases depending upon the terms of the lease agreements.

Assets acquired under leases, where the lessor has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership,
are classified as finance leases. Such leases are capitalized at the Inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the
present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is
allocated between the liability and the interest cost, so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding
liability for each period.

Investments:

Investments are classified into short temr and long term investments based on the management’s intention at the time of
purchase. Short term investments are carried at the lower of cost or fair market value of each investment computed
individually. Long-term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution is made if such diminution is cor{sidered as

being other than temporary in nature. The cost of an investment includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and
duties.

Funds/ Donations received by the University

FU[ndeﬁt’C;n?:::‘;;::Ee::d E;;I the University which are subject to certain conditions stipulated by the donors in terms of
o e\rf:}ateg to end utlisat?;: orn:trt: e th.em have been classified in the Balance Sheet as 'Restricted Funds'. These conditions
may @ donations or that the corpus is to be retained as such and the income derived there from

used for specific purposes. Any funds / donati i ke
‘Non Restricted Funds' / donations recieved with no such stipulations are classified in the Balance Sheet as

Donations received by the University from a donor for ¢

included under the category of Restricted Funds. This amo reation of a Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund have been

unt has been utilised for investment in fixed deposits with a bank
5
pPurpose. Seventy five percent of the incomes received from

he pur R
g twenty five percent shall be reinvested in the permaneifgiﬁfr:ﬁzmem o gens:jral s
owment Fun
nations (ot i
As and when funds.é Dgﬂ revenu:‘?eher than that received for Creation of Permanent Statutory Endow t Fund ilised
for meeting permitie Xpenses, an appropriate amount equal to the o i it
d to the income and Expenditure Account. In St suek: fu expenditure incurred is withdrawn and

remainiﬁ

credite

{B_d85 o




-4 -

P

= ===

f &

vAv

’ =F & ——_Fr

’

10
10.1

10.2

10.3

11

12
12.1

12,2

13

In:.ome derived on funds/donations (other than that received for creation of Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund) till thei
utlisation or on endowment funds where the University can only utlise the income there on are recognised in the Inc ill t E:
ome an

Expenditure Account,

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and at bank in demand deposits and cash equival
quivalents

comprise of short term highly liquid investments that are readily canvertible into known amounts of cash and which
nd which are

subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue Recognition:

Tuition & other fees:
Tuition and other fees are recognised on accrual basis based on the period to which it relates

Registration Fee and Application Fee:
Non refundable registration and application fees received from students are recognised on receipt basis

Interest and Other Income;
a) Interestis recognized using the time-proportion methad, based on rates implicit in the transaction

b) Dividendszare recorded when the right to receive payment is established
¢) Other Income are recognised at the time of rendering of service '
Foreign Currency Transactions:
All foreign currency tr-ans:a:c.tions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of such t
Monetary as.sets and I|ab|I|lt|es denominated in foreign currency are restated at the rates ruling at the year l‘ar:.actlons.
exchange gains/ losses arising there from are adjusted to the Income and Expenditure Account, except ‘lhnseen et
forward contracted rates where the premium or discount arising at the inception of such fon;ua d exch covered by
amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. rd exchange cantract is
Retirement Benefits to employees:

pefined Contribution Plan
The University’s defined contribution plans are the Employees Provident Fund (under the provisions of the Empl
mployees'

provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952)
The University's contribution to Provident Fund is made at pre-determined rates and is expensed i
Expenditure Account. The University has no liability other than making contributian to the fund PRI BT Inesma

Defined Benefit Plan [Long-Term Employee Benefits]

i) Gratuity
The liability as at the balance sheet date is provided for based on the i
actuarial valuation, based o i i
5 n Projected Unit Credit

Methad at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. Actuarial Gains and L i
adjustments and the effect of changes In the actuarial assumptions and are recognised immegf;s:sl e sty
iately in the Income and

Expenditure Account as an income or expense.

ii} Encashment of Leave
The employees are entitled for encashment of earned leave, a defined ben .
efit plan, in accorda ;
nce with the rules framed b
Y

for the m f actuarial valuation using Proj nit Cri
i Unive 5 T B rO]ecl‘ed Unit C edit

mMethod at the year end.

provisions; Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
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17a)

17b)

17c¢)

18

A provision is recognized when there is a present abligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an cutflow of
resources will be required to settle the ebligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions, other than
gratuity and leave liahilities, are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on management best
estimates of the expenditure required to settle the obligation as at the balance sheet date. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate for each such obligation.

A contingent liability is disclosed when there are possible or present cbligations that may, but probably will net, require an
outflow of resources, the outcome of which cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, unless the possibility of such
outflow is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since that may result in the recognition of income that may
never be realized.

Taxes on income:
The University is registered under 12 AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and hence is exempt from tax.

Impairment:
impalrment loss is provided to the extent carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount

is higher of asset’s selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected
to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Net selling price is the aI:noue ;
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs ;f

disposal.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the entity estimates the asset's recoverable
amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that th
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have b e
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such re een
recognized in the Income and Expenditure Account unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, In whi h versal is
is treated as a revaluation increase. ' ch case the reversal

Notes to Accounts

Contingent Liabilities Not Provided For:
The University has received an endorsement dated March 18, 2023 from Assistant Commissione
Rangalore, taking a contentian that the land taken on lease from KIADB for running its activity is liabl tr o
basls. He has also quantified the tax payable at Rs. 9 crores apart fram applicable interest and eto
responded to this endorsement objecting to the stand taken and has contended that no G
proposed. Based on professional advice, devolution of liability on the University is consider.
liability has been recognized in these financial statements.

f Taxes,(Vigilance)
pay GST under RCM
penalties, The University has
ST is payable on RCM basis as
ed not probable, and hence no

During the year, a writ petition has been filed with Honorable High Court of Karnataka wherein the Uni

responding party to a litigation challenging hoth the allotment of leasehold land by KIADB and - e Univers
Order approving such allotment of land. The University however, has filed objection to such liti S:ifﬂval bv_
there are no material effects on the functioning of the University and there exists valid title on Eh on .and i
portion of land allotted to it and such litigation does not hold any merit in the court of law basedig?:;:s

ity Is one of the
State Government
s confident that
ity of the said
advice sought.
Estima’cEd amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and nat provided for Rs 1,93 82316

pat e LT 03/-
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The University's Contribution to Provident and Natio
which is as follows:

nal Pension Scheme is expensed to the Income and Expenditure Account

1. Parti (A In %}
:10 articulars TR
a)  Employees Provident Fund
T::tal = 8,35,840.00
8,35,840.00
b) Gratuity {Unfunded) :-
Particulars {Amounts in %)
March
(1) Amounts In Balance Sheet rch 31, 2023
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
o e : " 11,79,121.00
et Liabil ecognised in Balance Sheet 79,
N s . 11,79,121.00
(ii) Amount recognised in Income and Expenditure Account
»Employee Benefit Expenses”
11,75,121.00

Expenses included in

The break up of the same between 'Current Cost' and 'interest * has not

been furnished by the actuary.
L e e

unfunded):-

¢) Encashment o, Leave

March 31, 2023

Particulars
(i) Amounts in Balance Sheet

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) g
Net Liability recognised in Balance Sheet 1:agi.§g:.00
,02,504.00

(i} Amount recognised in income and Expenditure Account
Expenses included in "Employee Benefit Expenses”
The break up of the same between 'Current Cost' and 'interest ' has not 148250000
been furnished by the actuary.
Actuarial Assumptions v
Discount rate arch 31, 2023
Salary increase 7.30%
Attrition rate 5.00%
Retirement age (in years) : 2.00%
Non-Teaching Staff

&0

£5

Teaching Staff

19 As setout in note 1A above, the assets and liabilities of CESS In so far as It relat
: ed to the Universi ;
effect from April 1, 2022. The 'fe" dlfjference between the value of assets and liabilities as a’:?}']eartm;v:ested in the latter, vtnth
deficit of Rs 1,12,86,690/-. This mainly represents the aggregate of all expenses (normally reco;n?ziz \';Estt:d resulted in a
n the income and

expenditure
was conceiv

account) incurred by CESS on hehalf of the University till M

; : arch 31, 2022 o )

ed. This aggregate expenditure incured has not been segregated between thir:en;ntci:irdeilte t?e n: nw: P
upto March 5, 2022 and

those incured from March 6, 2022 to March 31, 2022. The excess of expenditure over i
Expenditure account consequently does not include such expenditure incurred between Marr]crc:rsne P LE PR
ch 6, 2022 to March 31, 2022.

20 List of related parties:
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a) |Parties where control exists University is managed by the Board of Management and Board of
Governors and decision is taken by majority and as such no parties have
control.

b) [Key Management Personnel 1) Prof M K Shridhar

2) Mr. M P Kumar

3) Dr Sushanth Joshi

c) |Enterprise over which Key Management|CESS
Persannel have significant Influence

d) [Transactions with related parties Nature of Transaction Amount (in L2kh )
as on March 31, 2023

Dr Sushanth Joshi Salary 20,096,638
2) Assets [net) as at April 1, 2022 vested in 131,30,10,307
the University from CESS.
3) Donations received till March 31, 2022 130,50,01,000
on behalf of the University and transferred
to it by CESS.
4) Liabilities as at April 1, 2022 vested in the 30,09,307
University from CESS.

5) Expenses incurred from April 1, 2022 on
behalf of University till the date of
operational segregation and reimbursed by
ithe | Iniversity

6) Income earned from April 1, 2022 on
behalf of University till the date of
operational segregation and reimbursed by

\theam
7) Donations received from April 1, 2022 on

behalf of the University and transferred to
it by CESS.

8) Expenditure incurred in relation to assets
from April 1, 2022 on behalf of University
till the date of operational segregation and
reimbursed by the University

9) Balance due from CESS to the University
as at March 31, 2023

Assets taken on operating lease
The University has taken certain properties on Operating lease f
further period at its choice. The expendityre recognised in the |
greak up of commitments as at March 31, 2023 was 35 - e
-a) Upto one year Rs. 90,23,652 ‘
-b) Between one and five years Rs. 0

or a period of one year and in certain cases renewable for a
ncome and Expenditure Account for the year is Rs 90,23,652

of advances, i
The Balances deposits, accounts Payable and receivable are subject to confirmation
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garding their registration under Micro, Small and

g information from its vendors re
quired under the said act will be furnished upon

2006. Any disclosure as may be re
rsity in the ensuing year.

The University is in process of collectin
Medium Enterprises Development Act,
requisite data being collected by the Unive

n over from CESS persuant to the Chanakya University Act, 2021 continues

liabilities, agreements etc. take
fer them to the name of the university.

some of the assets,
s being taken to trans

to remain In its name. Action i

the first financial statements prepared after Incorporation of the University on March 6, 2022. Accordingly no

These are
been furnished.

previous year's figures have




Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

2 Restricted Fund
}7 particluar Permanent Statutory |Donatlon received with end utilization specified Development | Endowment Total
Endowment Fund Grants Schaolarships | CSR & Non-CSR Fund Fund
Balance as at April 1, 2022 transferred from CESS 25,00,01,000 50,00,000 1,05,00,00,000 1,30,50,01,000
Donation/grants recelved during the year 80,95,677 70,00,000 1,81,93,00,000 3,00,00,000 1,86,43,95,677
Transfer From Permanent Statutory Fund 89,48,832 89,48,832
Income from investments made of the funds credited
to fund account 1,19,48,832 1,19,48,832
Total addition - A 26,19,49,832 80,95,677 | 1,20,00,000 2,86,93,00,000 89,48,832| 3,00,00,000 3,19,02,94,341
Less:
Amortization of Deficlt transferred from CESS 1,12,86,650 1,12,86,690
Utllisation/Expenditure towards objectives of funds 48,59,747 48,59,747
Amortization of Deficit to Restricted Fund 19,49,72,938 19,49,72,938
Transfer of 75% of Income generated to Development 85,48,832 89,48,832
Capital Expenditure -
Revenue Expenditure 89,48,832 89,48,832
Utilization towards tuition fees charged to student 41,94,500 41,94,500
Total utilization - B[ 89,48,832 48,59,747 41,94,500 20,62,59,628 89,48,832 - 23,32,11,539
Net Balance As At The Year-End (A-B) , 25,30,01,000 [ 32,35,930 78,05,500 2,66,30,40,372 - 3,00,00,000 2,95,70,82,802
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Chanakya University

tablished under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

A  . (Es

—~ 3 General Fund
Particular Current Year

¥ Add:
' Balance as at April 1, 2022 transferred from CESS
_1112,86,690

Contributions towards General fund

s Less:
’ Balance from the Income and Expenditure account )
i Transfer to Other Fund e -
d ,12,86,690
1 Balance At The Year-End
4 Current Liabilities & Provisions
: — Pafticalay Current Year
4 A. Current Liabilities
sundry Creditors
p) For Capital Expenses -
For Others 4;:;;3%
Income received in Advance
) Advance Student Fees 4,39,500
Other Payables 3,27,500
g Retention money for Capital works 3,28,531
Statutory dues payable 4,85,30,880
% Total (A) 17,895,428
’ 7,77,22,652
: B. Provisions
‘ Retirement and Terminal Benefits
_ Expenses payable 29,81,625
S ’
Total (B)
) 29,81,625
Total (A+B)
8,07,04,277

=i e . N A~ & — =
- [ - [ @ == ,“" -4 &‘v )
4 £ B £ = 7 A 8 = B =) £ 5= /=] =S A |

gy _——
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Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Adt, 2021 - Kamataka Act No. 37 of

2021)

5,54,21,458.00

S Fixed Assets
As on 31-3-2023
I'. [ Gross Block Depreciation/A i Net Black
| Balance as at Balance as at
Particular Aprll 1,2022 April 1, 2022
\. Opening | transferred fram Opening | transferred Deletio
\ Value CESS Addltdan Deletion Closing Value Value from CESS Addition n Closing Value Opening Valua Claslng Value
' Tangible Assets
\land:
\ Leasehald rights In land (refer footnote
below) . | 51,45,49,312.00 . 51,45,43,311.00 - 51,97,407.00 | 51,97,407.00 1,03,64,814.00 | 50,93,45,904.00 50,41,48,497.00
Building:
| On Freehold Land
' In Leasehold Land
| Owmership Flats/ Premises
JFum:ture & Fixtures - 32,48,308.00 1,15,15,860.92 1,47,64,169.92 = 65,580.00 12,94,404.61 13,56,984,61 31,82,728.00 1,34,04,185.31
Computers & Peripherals 12,£3,735.00 1,03,85,730.72 1,16,65,465.72 5 #7,190.00 | 23,01,860.33 23,89,050.33 11,96,545.00 92,80,415.39
Office Equipments 88,251.00 B,10,584.00 8,58,835.00 - 2,739.00 1,37,547.87 1,40,286.87 85,512.00 7,58,548.13
\Vehicle 39,36,454.00 7,71,569.00 47,08,023.00 - 2,15,72L00 4,29,454.31 6,45,175.31 37,20,733.00 40,62,847.69
Library books - 8,21,317.34 8,21,317.34 - 8,21,317.00 8,21,317.00 - 034
Total for Current Year= (A) - 52,31,00,060.00 2,43,05,061.98 54,74.05.121.98 55,58,637.00 1,01,81,591.13 1,57,50,628.13 51,75,31,423.00 53,16,54,493.85
.r i ® =
f Intangible Assets
Software - 1,70,802.00 7,66,115.00 9,38517.00 - 21,336.00 2,84,915.26 3,06,251.26 1,49,466.00 6,30,665.74
Total for Current Year - (8) 1,70,802.00 7,66,115.00 - 9,36517.00 - 21,336.00 2,84,815,26 - 3,06,251.26 1,49,466.00 6,30,665.74
Total Fixed Assets for Current Year - [A+B] - [ 52,32,70,862.00 2,50,71,176.98 - 54,83,42,038.98 . | s5589,573.00| 1,04,66,90638| - 1,60,56,879.38 | 51,76,80,889.00 |  53,22,85,159.60
Capital Work-in-progress - 5,54,21,458.00 |  1,35,38,27,251.52 1,40,92,48715.52 5,54,21,458.00 | 1,40,92,48,715.52
TRANSFER TO ASSETS
1,35.33,2?,257.52 1,40,91,48,?25-51 # 1,40,92,48,715.52

/Net Worl-In-Progress - (B)

Footnote:
Land has been taken on long term |@ase by
determination of price. Certain documents like Pani,

y the University from K
Khata etc. 2

JADB for 99 years. The premlum pi
re also to be obtained in the name of the Univarsity.

ald provislonally has been shown? und

erthe head

‘Leasehold rights' above. The University is llable to pay the differential amount, If any, on final




Chanakya University

{Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

6 Investments

Particular

Current Year

Long term
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity
From Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund

15,17,00,0C0

Total (A) 15,17,00,000

Short term

Mutual Fund

From Permanent Statutary Endowment Fund 10,00,00,000
From Education Chair 3,00,00,000
Dther Mutual Fund 35,00,00,000
48,00,00,000
Less: Fair market value adjustment i respect of short term investment (3,502)
Total (B) 47,39,96,498
Total (A+B)] 63,16,96,498

7 Current Assets
Particular

Current Year

sundry Oebtors
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months

Others

Prepaid Expenses
Student Fees Receivable
Cash in Hand

Bank Balances

Chegque in Hand
Accrued Interest

4,576

1,72,500
2,85,750
419
10,11,97,925
14,13,00,000
3,08,589

Total

24,32,69,759

Additional Disclosure far investment In Mutual Fund

- Education Chair

|CIC) Pru Asset Allocator Fund 3,53,993.006

85.1112

- Mutual Fund

HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund 77,93,052,945 12,9220
|CICI Pru Floating Interest Fund 2,82,456.911 356.0663
|CICI Pru Ultra Short Term Fund 17,05,649.825 23,6124
58| Magnum Low Duration Fund 13,507.262 | 2,982.8489
$Bl Magnum Ultra Short Duratien Fund 13,739.312 | 5,094 6145

—

Gross total

Particular Lt Sex Cost Market Value
_ permanent Statutory Endowrment Fund
HDFC Low Duration Fund 2,07,354.399 49,0814 1,00,00,000 T
|CIC] Pru Assat Allocator Fund 5,93,852.372 85.1112 5,00,00,000 5’05:43,488-
sB! Balanced Advantage Fund 18,54,953.907 10.8230 2,00,00,000 2'00 ?5:166
581 Magnum Medium Duration Fund 4,73,705.654 |  42.9745 2,00,00,000 i

3,00,00,000

m,m,mmg
10,00,00,000
4,00,00,000
4,00,00,000
7,00,00,000

3,01,28,770

10,07,01,830
10,05,73,557
4,02,74,486
4,02,90,122
6,99,96,498

48,00,00,000.41

48,31,19,424




Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No 37

of 2021)
8 Loans, Advances & Deposits
Particular
Current Year _7
Advances to employees
Advance Statutory dues paid 70,947
Deposits 21,71,927
TDS Receivable 69,456,800
Construction advance 40,881,402
Advance to CESS 9,25,45,598
Advance to others 47,294
Mobilization advances 25,000
11,53,97,978
Total
L g 22,12,86,946
]
g  Academic Receipts -

Particular %
_—-__—__—'_‘_‘—-—-—

—_—
—— Current Year |
' Tuition fee L 1eE
.' -From Students
| -From Scholarship 19.76,905_15
Hostel Fees 30,64,250
[0 |
‘ -From Students 50,41,156
-From Scholarship i
Admission fee 11,30,250
‘M
program fee 11'30’223
7,65,0
Total 89,410
\L\ 70,25,817




CENTRE FOR EDUCATIONAL AND SOCIAL ST UDIES ("CESS")

[Formerly known as CENTRE FOR LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT IN PUBLIC SERVICES] L |" CHANAKYA
Regd. Off: #6/6, 'Prajnanam’, 10th Block, 2nd Stage, Nagarbhavi, Bangalore - 560072 CESS . . ... (S
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 (All amounts in Rupess)

Particulars Notes Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Funds
Corpus Fund s 25,55,91,000 55,890,600
Designatad Fund 4 1,05,50,00,000 )
General Fund 5 (94,28,109] 33,981,889
130,11,62,891 89,81,889
Cugrrent liabilities
Trades payables 6 61,03,493 N
Other current liabllities 7 23,82,710 3,780
B4,86,203 3,780

TOTAL 1,30,96,49,094 89,85,669
ASSETS
Non-current assets

property Plant & Equipment g 17605242 93,527
Intangible assets g 1,49,467 :
Capital Worlk-In-Progress 9 554,21,368 .
Investments 10 25,11,50,360 3
82,43,24,437 93,527
current assels
Trade recelvables 4,31,670 R
Current Investments T 24,36,42,020 69,77,070
Cash and cash equivalents =2 14:30,73.227 15,334,215
Loans and advances + 281,77, 741 3,80,857
48,53,24,657 58,02.142
[ToTAL_—— Anllaneo ot 89,85,669
ificant accounting policies 2

s?lmn::;ymopf ;:5:1;8 notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The a
As per our report of even date _

Far] K suresh & Co For and on behalf of the Executive Committee

tered Accountants
]{3;1:’; ;egisﬂ‘au"n Number: 0127695

- et Qﬂ-‘a\_/

J K Sur M. K. Sridlhar Nagaraja Reddy
Proprietor President Secretary
Membership No.: 204653
UDIN: 2220U6S3A%FY TVY
Place: Bengﬂiuﬂl ) WG. CDR. A Ri]gh“ﬂ_ath
pate: 29 September 2022 Treasurer
[




CENTREFOR CDUCATIONAL AND SOCIAL STUDIES {"CESS") j :
{Formerly known as CENTRE FOR LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT IN FUBLIC SERVICES] \ l CHANAKYA
Regd, Off: #6/6, "Prajnanan’, 10th Block, 2nd Stage, Magarhhavi, Bangalare - 560072 T R W Sy T
Statement of income and Expenditure for the year ended March 31,2022 {All amounts in Rupees)
= Asat Asat
Particulars Notes
s ° March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
INCOME
Grants & Donations 14 §8,06,091 69,33,539
Interest Income 15 1,68,58,138 4,08,180
Other Incorme 16 17,96,785 96,821
Total Income 2,75,41,814 74,38,540
EXPENDITURE :
Project Expenses 17 67,61,625 43,46,508 f
Employee Benefit Fxpenses 18 1,25,57,154 30,17,065 A
Administrative & General Expenses 19 1,16,65,339 5,69,346
Depreciation 56,11,680 39,775 y
Repalrs & Maintenance 15,90,542 60,459 ;l
Uther expenses 20 21,75,432 1,30,690 2 ‘
Total Expenses 4,03,61,812 ¥1,63,843 L ﬂ
Excess of Income over Expenditure (1,28,19,998) (7,25,303) _ j.
Tax Expense _ ) . ﬂ
Amopunt transferred to General Fund {1,28,19,998) (7,25,303) rl
i
Summary of significant accounting policies ; 2 o)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. l
-JL-
As per our report of even date @
For } K Suresh & Co For and on hehalf of the Executi i
Chartered Accountants e CemisEes P
Firi Registratlon Number: 0127695 1?
, ] K Sure: A/ FIRM No, M. K. Sridhar p
: N
' Proprietor =3 0127695 |- President s:cil;:ja Reddy w
’ Memhership No.: 204653 v '
‘ UDIN 22 20U 53AX I TV I
@
Place: Bengaluru A WG, CDR. A Raghurath :
Date: 29 September 2022 Treasurer
e !
"
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CENTRE FOR EDUCATIONAL AND SOCIAL STUDIES ("CESS”)
wn as CENTRE FOR LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT IN P!

UBLIC SERVICES)

(Il CHANAKYA

place: Bengalurt ]
Date: 29 September 4022

WG. CDR. A Raglunath

Treasurer

[Formeriy kno
Hegd, Off: #6/6, ‘Trajnanamy’, 10th Block. 2nd Stage, Nagarbhavi, Bangulore - 560074 CEss - — e E
Statement of Aeceipts and Paymenis for the year ended March 31, 2022 {All amounts in
Asat Asat
Partctiaes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Tash & Cash Eq at the Beginning of the Perlod
Cash on and 2,660 31,952,798
Balances with Banks 15.31,549 A791
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beglnuing of the period (A) o 1534215 31.99.589
RECEIPTS
Grants recefved 23,26,572 21,14,064
Danations received 65,60,319 42,24,200
Tnterest on Tetm Deposils 2B30,508 =
Interest on Savings Accountt 34,15,807 -
interest on Income Tax fefund 1,208 041
Professional Receipts 942,201 BY,245
Amniual Memuership Fee 75,600 1,400
Sale of Seraps & Bnoks 4,208 17,177
Income Tax Hefund 15,152 13061
Chanalkya University Project Fund 1,05,50,00,000 -
Corpus Donativus 25,000,000 -
Life Mewbership Fee - Za00
Total Recelpts imting the period (B) 1,32,13,72,6658 69,&5:038
PAYMENTS
Project Expenses 67,63,187 42,94,758
Salarizs and Wages 1,0444,350 3055333
Wectricity and power 90,688 .
Postage & Courler Expenses 8182 £343
Telephone and Internet Cliarges 2,05,264 112,000
Printing and Statlonery 371,643 99,881
Travelling and Conveynnce Expenses 10,17,968 47,276
Office Maintenance Expenses 1336,620 156391
Hanorarium 257,000 -
Advertisement ind Publioty 36,495,437 .
Profzssional Chatges 37,25,398 204,000
Hepairs & Maintenance 14,72,278 60,460
Tegistation & Application Fees 15,24,492 %
Denation to Other Charitable Trusts . 73,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 262,622 5
Rates & Tanes 30,895 3,400
Bank Charges 8,165 2,085
Subscriptions & Nenewals i 18,160
Sundry Creditars {12,62,887) 492,376
purchase of Fixed Assets 52,21,96,688 5,499
capital Work in Progress 52511232 S
statutony Endowsent Fund 25,00,00,000 g
investment in Fixed Deposits 22,85445,818 Z
Advance towards Canstruction of University Project 7,0L43,817 i
Mabilization Advance 1.96,07,096 .
Other Deposits 67,81,800 &
Total Payments during the perlod [£) 1,17,98,33 653 86,30.462
Cash & Cash Bquivalents at the End of the Period
cagh on hand 26,440 2,666
Balanees with Banks 14,304,787 15'31:549
Total Cash nnd €ash Buivalents (A+5-C) 14,30,73,227 15,3415
Gummary of siguificant accounting policies 1
The gccompanying nutes are an Integral part of these finan vl statements.
Asg per our repart of even date
Fur ) K Suresh & Go Fur and on behalf of the Execulive Committee
ch”[mdmmrununts
Firm Registigtion Number: 0127698
’IZ LA Q%’?
M. K. Stidhar Nagarafa Reddy
Proprietor President
pembership Nos 204653
UDIN :

UpiN & 22204653 AXFITV 3243




CENTRE FOR EDUCATIONAL AND SDCIAL STUDIES ("CESS™) __1
[Farmerly lmowmn a5 CENTRE FOR LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT IN PUBLIC SERVICE A A
L 1 S 4
Regd. OfF: #6/6, 'Prajnanant, 10th Block, Znd Stage, Nagarbhavi, Bangalore - 560072 ] ‘ “ J C H N KYA

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 RRER  Sosniacseomie

Nole 1
Organisation and A cvity
Centre for Eduational and Social Studies (*CESS"), formerly knawn as Centr
=L 4 atre for Leadershi d
the “Instirution”] is established as  Society under the Karnatuka Sotleties Registration Act Tgngr:; ;;:;T{?;::;T E;:u; Services (hereinafter referred as
. 2. 6/6, 'Prajnanam’, 10th Bluck, 2nd Stage,

Nagarbhavi, Bangalare - 560072, Rarnataka India. The Institution
: : A " primarily understand
{n the areas of Quality, Stakeholder Manzgement, Technology and Knowledgement Mmla:c?nn:n];uﬁds SOLEARICH HED S S 00NEr PRl Serelt S

The Institution is registered under section 1244 afthe Income Tax Aet,
, 1961 and has also obtained a ¢
ertificate undar seckion 806G,

The Chanalgya University (Project of CESS) s a multi-disc
plinary stitution committed unfli
g nch 3
teaching, development of knowledge and direct contributions n the world of practice. The mnr:er:i:%;rllr::iitz\h::dﬁ ild'.r:JI:Ie ﬁi\:]ucicty Hrgh cpines
ndian knowledge systems will deepl
Y

informm all the kmowledge endeavours of the University including t 3
Gttt ofthe wokld, g teaching, research and practice. Truly Indian in spirit, the Unlversity will act equally a
2 yasa

The Universigy s strateglcali_‘,r located near the Bengalnru International Aj th
i : Airport and Is 4 part of ABro- dustrial Zo ch houses over 10
;\f[u:: EN.::?ml :.:::i?mmtel:. Il?dudlng Ralls RnyF:. Apple, and ‘me likes. This c:wimnmm;pt w‘.;; cn:nug Srt;laceshh;d nsgg ton n:i.m\'.'hi‘lﬂmo]uns ey ,ﬁr o
y of experiential earning through projects, internships, and interactions with industry l:mls':s \:hjd va.rlll b duswi e
ol s \! prepare them for evolving :
g g as a

professional. We will be embedding Value-Added Professional Pr
B eeformative Leader In their career spare, ograms which will enhance their emplayability skills, and every student will evol:
" il wili veasa

Note 2
Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Slatements

These financizl statements are prepared [n aco dance wi
prepa ccordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (Indian GAAP
ndian GAAP), under the historical cost

tonvention on the arcmal basis and as a going cone -ount
standard is initially adopted or a revision t F';Jn s“ronuem. Accaunting Pollcles have been consistent)
0 an cxisting nccounting standard requires a change | ad ntly applied cxcept where a newly-issued accounting
1 the accounting policy hitherto i H l
toinuse,

(b} Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in confornity with th
e Generally Ac .
and assumptions that may affect the reported amount of assets w ¥ Accepted Accounting Polic
1d ligbilities, cies requires that the managem
ent makes estimates

. ; e discl ;
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reported periad, th osure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements 2nd
ements 2n

estimates is recognized prospectively in current: e e actual result cow ; :
gnized prosp ¥ and future periods. Actual results eould differ ﬁéi‘dt;ll‘:‘: tms;n those estimates, Any revision to accoupting
At estimates, 5

(c) Revenue Recognltion
fncome is resognised T the et itls probabie that the econg,
i ? mic benefits wili fi
received as part of Donations and Contributions are treated as uw Lo the Institution
i ncome and the amo :
biaske: In the year of receipt. tncome from interest ou:td‘;apn U:Srcllahly Stk inane
usits arve recogiised on accrual

(d) Fund Accounking
Fund Acrounting is a method uf accountiug and presentation wher
eby assets and liabiliti
i ities are gr

used. A fund Is either CTC:'lf:'—‘d by law “f;ﬂf Fdﬂamﬁement or by donor. Funds are o ;:: 2 ElTped according to the purpose for which the

Jnvesanents, Inventory, Ba \BICCU.LIHI!‘. cf;c. fund Accounting does not necessarily Invol presente Py the assets whether in the form of Fj y are tobe

the restriction jmposed for utilisation of asset Ve apening of'a new hank account far its operati pu, sed Assets,
ons. Funds are just

Fund based accounting essentially involves preparation of financial stateinents fu i
s/ position ofthe ins citution as a whole. nd-wise and consolidation of thost statements to represent the fi
N e financial

Funds received may be divided into:
i, Restricted Funds
il Unrestricted Funds

2. Carpus Fund - Funds contributed by founders / promoters of the Institution, it also incl

= o _ 3 udes donati

to be part of the covpus: These :nfc rl:on mﬁ“:d?;b]g fnds, which can however be increased by admﬁnns Jeontributions received with specific directio

donors / contributors with specifle divections to be partof the corpus in furtherance of the uﬁjects fth (;mi contribucion by the foundess / promot; rn;
of the Institution, S

; - Funds contributed by founders s ’
b. D:’*:E?“{_:&T;ﬂﬂ?” d / promoters including CSR Funds towards Chanakya University - Project of
part o e L £ . 1sity - Project of CESS This is not

’ orming

) Fund - Unrestricted funds other thab designated funds and corpus

. Generd

=



CENTRE FOR EDUCATIONAL AND SOCIAL STUDIES ("CESS")

[Formerly kmown as CENTRE FOR LEADERSHII" AND MANAGEMENT IN PUBLIC SERVICES] { \

Regd. OfF: #6/6, 'Prajnanan’, 10th Block, 2nd Stage, Nagarbhavi, Bangalore - 560072 ' 4 C HAN AK YA
CESE.  omioiasnasifosacintoietims g

Notes to Financial Statement for the yvear ended March 31, 2022

(e} Fixed Assets & Depreciation
Fixed assets are catrled at cost of acqulisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets comprises their
B > purchase price including d
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable / adjustable from tax authorities) and any dircctiy attributable cost ut'hringﬁng the mgggmu:,g:;ﬁ:

condition for thelr intended use.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cnst. Follnwing Initdal reco
: ition, ihtangibl
aceumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, (Fany. o i

Fixed Assets were earlier being depreciated under the Written Down Value method at the rates i

; prescribed under section 32 r/w Rule 5
Act, 1961, Whereas from the financial year 2021-22 onwards, there has been a change in the Policy of the Institution ua{\eta:-em:ii:g Imm: Tax
depreciated an Straight Line Method basis, The leasc hold improvements are depreciated over the primary period of the lease/ license. ore belng

The amortizatan perlod and the amortization method are reviewed at each financial year end. If the ex

he : ; pected useful life of the asset is signi
different from previous estimates, the amortization period Is changed accordingly. If therce has been a significant change in thf: gﬁggrmnﬁcambb
economle benefits from the assct, the amortization method is changed ta reflcct the changed pattern ) AL

The Institution has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its Fixed Assets:

Type of Asset Depreciation Rate
Oftice Equipments 2094
Computers & Computer Softwares 254
Furniture 20%
Vehicle 20%
(f) Lease of Land

Leasehold land rentals to be charged tu the Income and Expenditure account on straight line basis in case of operating lease unless another syste :
basis is more appropriate if payment to lessur is not made on straight line basis, ystematic

(g) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the [nstitution has a present obligatlon as a resulc of past eveng, it is probable thatan outfiow of resour, i
economic benefits will be required to settle the abligadon and a reliable estimate can be trade of the amount of the obligation. Prwc:ﬂsnzr:?;:—iﬁnﬁ
discounted to thelr present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation atthe reporting date, These estimaf:_.;

are reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted to retlect the current best estimates,

A contingent liabllity is 2 possible obligation that arises from past events whose exdstence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occu ,
more uncertain future events heyond the control of the [nstitution or a present abligarion that is not recognized becausc it is not P"“.hablc];:;tn: ;;i:g. or
of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a ltability that cammt{:::

recognized because frcannotbe measured reliably.

The Institution does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. The Institution h -
contingent fiabititics during the current vear. on has not recognized any

(h) Income Taxes
The Institution 1§ registered under section 12AB of the Income-tax Act, 1961 ("the Act”). Under the Provisions of the Act, the Income of the Institution is

exempted from @, subject to the compliance of specific terms and conditions specified in the Act. The application of fu g
payment basis as envis aged in Section 11 of the Act, rp! n of funds are considered based on actual

\/ FIRM No.
[ 012769




Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and results of operations of the
University in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
and as per Section 60 of the Act. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation

and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the University’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Identify and assess the risk : ;

SEHEMETS, WHSthar. dus Stos ;:;u;na;?rizl”g:lss;t:?ment of the ﬁnancia?l
proc.e‘dures responsive to those risks, ang o'htain ga" dénd r,::erforrn aud.nt
sufhcngnt and appropriate to Provide a basis for our u. l.t E\Hdenc‘e kAt 19
detecgng d Material misstatement resulting from fra zp.iﬂlgn. The risk of not
resulting from error, as fraugd may involve cy Ud is higher than for one




«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the University’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University

.
.f“ 1

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
» represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

F

presentation.

|

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

A B4 i~
B

T #

audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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For B. K. Ramadhyani & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028785/5200021
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Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2024

¢ .

[ All the amounts are in Lakhs ¥, unless otherwise stated)

4,

Particulars Note As.on As on
B March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
d Source of Funds
) a. Donatians and Grants
' 9 i. Restricted Funds
parmanent Statutory Endowment Fund 2 2,535.86 2,530.01
Ta Other Funds 778.21 407.75
~ Infrastructure (CSR) Fund 2 24,399.84 18.675.46
™ i, Unrestricted Funds
) Development Fund 3 5.50 )
General Fund 3 13,904.92 7,854.94
;‘ 41,674.33 29,568.16
= b. Nen-Current Liabilities
— Long-Term Liabilities 4 1.223.04 R85
Long Term Provisions 5 38.90 26.66
') Ead
T o ¢, Current Liabilities
M' Short Term Borrowings 6 1,489.29 s
= Other Current Liabilities 7 3,019.68 294.60
| Shart-Term Provisions g 421 3.16
\
e Total 47,449.45 30,377.89
\ Apolication of Funds
) ) 2. Non-Current Assets
| property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets
! .E " Property, Plant & Equipment [} 24.725.12 531543
4 Intangible Assets 9 732 742
\ Capital Work-In-Progress g 16,406.40 14,052.49
’ Long term Investments
\ For Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund 10 2,535.00 2,517.00
R s Other deposits 10 1,500.00 .
Long-Term Loans and Advances 11 665.29 214320
1
b. Current Assals
Current Investments 12 637.36 3,799.96
L Cash and cash =quivalents 13 560.23 242498
N\ = Short-Term Loans and Advances 14 85,24 6372
L Other Current Assets 15 206.89 263
' Tou! 47,449.45 30,377.89
A 1&24
sign ficant Accounting Palicies & Motas To Accounts
As per our report attached of even date For and on behalf of Board of Governors
For B.K.Ramadhyani & Ca, LLP
;haﬂe:ed Accounts
'J'., £RN no28785/5200C21 \ \
f (L\v!—’l/ Lve
E’ | .-:r:'i (] ¢_ Sridhar) {Praf Yashavantha "Je.'ire\-
(cA vasuk = B Founder Chancellor Vies - Charceifor
| e b .
ar dald R ' 4
\ J Mampersmg MO 212012 . ﬁ\‘ﬁ .
’ plaLe Bangalure - "? i3 ™ f
24 = T Lart Supban Ghosh

1gte 08/07
Cate & Registrar !
Chiaf finance Officer




Chanakya University {{

|£stablishad undar the Chanakya Unwersity Act, 1021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

inceme And Expenditure Account g
atwdl

[ AU the amsurts are in Laki % urlen atherwae st

Far the year ended March 31, 2024 For the peried ended on March 31, 2023 .
Particluar Note il
. aestrictec Funds l Unrestricted Funds Total ‘ Restrictec Funds | Unrestricted Funds Total
Income < Fi
Tuition fee & other fees % % 21205 419,05 . 33 31 L%
scholarship e 138.06 - 138.06 2195
Hostel Receipts 17 - 218125 218.25 E :
Otner iInggme 18 8567 41179 497 46 . 182 42 X
Total Income () | 223.73 | 1,049.09 1,272.82 195 | YT 232.68|
Expenditure
£mplovae Banafit Expense o4 = 1,064 04 1.064.04 . 736 50 71580
Academic Expenses 0 3739 405.71 11310 Y gea3 127.27
seholarshin 20 11306 a7.10 o £ B rt (.
Hostel Expenses 21 S 116.45 116.46 i 1080 1080
Advartisament and Pubiicity . 574 80 57480 708 -56 709.55
| General Eaganses 23 43.28 1,078.00 1.126.29 . '_“: e 473.84 \
|Expenses befera Degreciation and Interest | 223.73 l 3,436.41 1,550.15 ~TRCE y ;1;.53 2.058.57
cxcess of Expendlmrelaefnre depreciation and Interest) ever j
inceme ¢ 2,387.33 2.387.33 e 182590 3
| peprecaton/amortizaticn” 9 501 65 103 64 s ) 102 &7
| FpaneaCost 22 1 ) 5305 -59 = 104,67 1215
T Total of Depreciation and Finanee Cast 503.85 | 3 - 18.18 383
18 | 866.34 | 104 67 T9.16 1
lEg:ess of Expenditure gver income (A-B} 1503.85) (2,750.02) 43.73]
i 1,942
=ranster of Defict to General Fund 275002 (3:-253.i7j (104.567) {1,845.06) ( it oé
~¢ansfar of Depreciation to Infrasteucture |CSRI fund 43572 -.':'EO.L? 1845.06 oaET
—ransfar of Depreciatian related to Otner Funas 791 4,5}_;3‘ 104.57 2 l
3
g f cant Aczaurtng Soircees & Natey Ta Accounts 1&24
= @ater wate 1AL
As per aur report attached af even date
For B.KRamadhyani & Co, LLP For and an behalf of Board of Gavernors
Chartered Aczounts
saN CO23785/5200021
A \ e =)
= } A \
- i \
W*%H g‘ q O 7 e
V L (laTe—— 7 N NI
ca vascki 4 5] [Frat M K, Sndhar) 1Drl. Yashavamiia DD,;"'-;_‘.; L

aunder Chancailar Niee - Chadcelor

/

sarrer
Wiemberstip No 212013

Slace Bangaior=

qata 0AOI7I02Y
15 Sapban Ghashi

Chiaf Finance 3fficar
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',-J Chanakya University
(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED ON THAT DATE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Background
The Chanakya University (‘University') was incorporated under "The Chanakya University Act, 2021 (Karnataka Act No.37 of

2021)(the Act) of the Government of Karnataka and received its assent on October 11, 2021, vide Parlamentary affairs &
Legislation Secretariat Notification No. DPAL 44 SHASANA 2021, Bengalury, dated October 11, 2021 and was incorporated a;—n
artificial jurdical person on March 05, 2022. The Centre for Social Studies (CESS) acted as a sponsoring bady of the Univers?t

and had incurred certain expenses, entered into agreements including those with donors, obtained requisite approvals fo\:
setting up the University, entered into certain contracts with vendars and contractors for creating infrastructure for running
the University and took all other actions necessary or incidental there to. All assets and liabilities acquired/contracted by CEsE
in connection with the University vested in the latter persuant to the said act. A memorandum was executed to formalize th

same with effect from April 1, 2022. In terms of this memorandum, the benefits of all approvals, agreements, cont o :
and obligations which CESS had in relation to the University was also transferred to it. ‘ TR RIS

significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial Statements
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and on the accrual basis of accounting in
i

accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. These financial statements comply with th
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). ¥

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles require
5

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues/ expenses for th

year and assets/liabilities/disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting date. Management believes that thi
he preparation of financial statements are prudent, reasonable and based on best knowledge of curre 't
events & actions. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current eventsnand actionns
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring @ material adjustment to the:
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Difference between the actuals and estimatas are recognized in the

period in which the same are known / materialized.

estimates used int

Fixed Assets:

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The

Cost of assets comprises of cost of acquisition and all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the present conditio
for its intended use. Fixed assets received free of cost or donation are carried at nominal value Rs. 1 bl
omprises of all directly attributable costs of bringing the fixed assets to their working condition for

Capital work-in-progress ¢
f asset being put to use. Advances paid to acquire fixed assets at the reporting date have been

their intended use, till the date o
included under 'Loans and Advances'

)




Depreciation:
Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Methad on the estimated useful life of the assets as estimated by the management.
Following table shows the estimated useful life of the asset under each category:

Rsset Categdry Useful Life (in years) Rate of Depreciation
Lease hold rights in land Ovierthe ieriod of lease

Buildings 30 —
Roads 10 16 s
Temporary structure 5 201 000:
Computers 5 .00%
Servers & Networks " 33.33%
Software 5 20.00%
Office Equipments Academic Project Grants g 33.33%
plant & Machinery g 20.00%
Furniture g 12.50%
Electrical & other Equipments - 12.50%
Lab Equipment & 10.00%

Library Books are depreciated fully in the year of purchase. 20034
Utensils are being expensed out in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation on assets is provided prorata from the date of addition over the useful lif i ,
assets sold/discarded/disposal is recognised till the date of sale/discarding/disposal e mentioned above. Depreciation on

Leases taken by the University:
Leases are classified as finance or operating leases depending u
pon the terms of the |
€3ase agreements,

Assets acquired under leases, where the lessor has substantially transferred all the risks ; i

are classified as finance leases. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the leasa E:nd rewards incidental to ownership,

value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amo?n:“éef:ithe fair value or the presen;
- Each lease rental paid is allocat®

between the liability and the interest cost, 50 35 10 obtain a constant periodic rate of i
each period. interest on the outstanding liability fof

Investments:

Investments are classified into short term and long term investments based on th .

purchase. Short term investments are carried at the lower of cost or faj € management's intention at the time of
5 . = Ir mar .

individually. Long-term investments are carried at cost and provision for diminutio: iter;:jiui \af 2ach investment ccmputed

being cther than temporary in nature. The cost of an investment includes acquisitio I-f THSHSH irifiudan [y GUSTRISa

duties. n charges such as brokarage, fees and

Funds/ Donations received by the University

funds/Donations received by the University which are subject to certain conditions stipulated b

relevant agreements entered into with them have been classified in the Balance Sheet as 'RESti A ; the d‘onors in terms of
may relate to end utilization of such donations or utilisation in terms of the ‘Corparate Social Re: ‘i ands These conditions
‘CSR Funds’) or that the corpus is to be retained as such and the income derived there from usepd ?S! ew Iféﬂiv classified as
funds / donations received with no such stipulations are classified in the Balance Sheet as 'Non Restrlct(;;sfues::: purposes. Any

Donations received by the University from a donor for creation of a Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund have b .

under the category of Restricted Funds. This amount has been utilised for investment in fixed deposits wj S SRR
peen earmarked for this purpose. Seventy five percent of the incomes received from Permanent Statuf
shall be used for the purpose of development or general work of the University. The remaining twg
reinvested in the permanent Statutory Endowment Fund

V-




91

9.2

23

10

11
11.1

11.2

when funds / donations (other than that received for creation of Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund) are utilised
e utilised for

As and
meeting permitted revenue expenses, an appropriate amount equal to the expenditure incurred is withdrawn and crad
nd credited to

the Income and Expenditure Account. In case such funds / donations are utilised for meeting permitted capital e -
unF equal to the depreciation/amortisation recognised on the relevant assets is withdrawn and J'iper_tthtune, an
ome and Expenditure Account. The balance amount not recognised as income is shown in the Balance Sheet cl’zd:te: t:the

under the head

appropriate amo
Inc

'Restricted Funds'.
Income derived on funds/donations (other than that received for creation of Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund
wment Fund) till their

utlisation or on endowment funds where the University can only utlise the income there on are recognised in the |
ncome and

Expenditure Account.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and at bank in demand deposit d h
s and cash equivalents

comprise of short term highly liquid investments that are readil ible i
y convertible into known .
to insignificant risk of changes invalue. wn amounts of cash and which are subject

Revenue Recognition:

Tuition & other fees:
Tuition and other fees are recognised on accrual basis based on the period to which it relates

Registration fee and Application Fee:
Non refundable registration and application fees received from students are recognised on receipt basi
asis

Interest and Other Income:
a) Interestis recognized using the time-proportion method, based on rates implicit in the transaction

b) Dividendsare racorded when the right to receive payment is established.

¢) OtherIncome are recognised at the time of rendering of service

Foreign Currency Transactions:

All foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of such t ;

zssets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the rates ruling at the yearh p ra;sacuons MonEFar\;

losses arising there from are adjusted to the Income and Expenditure Account, except those w‘,?: da; fa1| e.‘ichange gains/

rates where the premium or discount arising at the inception of such forward exchange contract iseam:rticz:;c:: ;-”S“Uatted
penss or

income over the life of the contract.

Retirement Benefits to employees:

Defined Contribution Plan
The University’s defined contribution plans are the Employees Provident Fund {under the provisions of the Empl
3 e Employees

provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1252)

s contripution to provident Fund is made at pre-d [
-determined rates and is i
expensed in the Income and

The University'
ount. The University has no liability other than making contribution to the fund

Expenditure AcC

Defined Benefit Plan [Long-Term Employee Benefits]

i) Gratuity
The liability as at the halance sheet date is provided for based on the actuari

- uarial valuati ; " .

Mathod at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. Actuarial Ga::? badsed on prolectf_d Unit Credit

stments and the effect of changes in the actuarial assumptions and are recognised ian: Li:lsstesl comprise experience

mediately in the Income and

adju
ncome or expense.

Expenditure Account as an i
ji) Encashment of Leave
The employees are entit
Univarsity The liability
pMethod at the year end

led for encashment of earnad leave, a defined b [
, enefit plan, in accord i
i i TS : ance with the rules framed by th
r = -
for the period has been determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Ciecht
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions, other than
gratuity and leave liabilites, are not discountad to its present value and are determined based on management b ;t E‘ ta
of the expenditure required to settle the obligation as at the balance sheet date. Provisions are reviewec?at each lj estimates
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate for each such abligation. aehkmimmEnant

A contingent liability is disclosed when there are possible or present obligations that may, but probably will i
outflow of resources, the outcome of which cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, unless trme ”9; 'reqmre an
outflow is remote. : possibility of such
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since that may result in the recognition of i h
income that may

never be realized.

Taxes on Income:
The University is registered under 12 AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and hence is exempt from tax

Impairment:
Impairment loss is provided to the extent carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable am
‘ ount is

higher of asset’s selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected
arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Net selling price is the amoUtc:
H = ] 3 n
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arms length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of
t 50

disposal.

An assessment is made at each reparting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impai

losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the entity estimates the asset’s recoverabl pairment
A praviously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumpticns used to d e amount.
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the ¢ 0 'etermme the
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have b t-arrymg. e
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is reco E-En d"; L oa
Expenditure Account unless the asset is carried at a revalued amaount, in which case the reversal i A mg"-f‘.\ me and

ncrease.
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ranations and Grants

Restncted Fund

A on March 31, 2024

Chanakya University

(Cstanlshed under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No 37 of 2021)

-

Permanent Statutory OthevEundy
Particular ’ Infrastructure (CSR) Fund Total
Endowment Fund Arademic Project Grants Scholarships Research Chair School of Bio-Stience (CSR)
|Cpuning Batance 2,530 01 29.70 78.05 300,00 : 18,675.40 2161322
|Lonation/grants recewed or recaivable during the year 22,57 101.00 75.00 400,00 6,220.10 b,H1R.67
\:m'.m\l.— tram livestments re-cradited 1o the [und Account 123.40 355 226.95
Total addition - A 2,753.41 52.27 179.05 375.00 403.55 24,895.56 28,658.84
|Less
‘Uulmnmrn{! xpendnure towards objertives af funds 4B.29 37.39 85.68
|1 ranster fram Income & Expenditure Account
| Depreciation 7.93 49572 503.64
! Mhers -
Transfer of 75% of iIncome generated to Development fund 167 55 167.55
"."Jrllulmw.ll ol scholarsnip towards acadenne receipts 138.06 13806
Total utilization - B 167.55 48.29 138.06 - 45.32 495.72 894.92
I . Net Balance As At The Year-End [A-B8) 2,585.86 3.99 41.00 375.00 358.22 24,399.84 27,763.92
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3 Unrestricted Fund
As on March 31, 2024

Chanakya University

(Estatlished under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021}

Particular General Fund Development Fund Total
Opening Balance 7.954.94 - 7,954.54
Danation/grants receivad during the year 8,700.00 5.50 §,705.50
Transfer From Permanent Statutary Fund being 75% of Income generated 167.55 167.55
Total addition - A 16,654.94 173.05 16,827.99 :
Less: |
Transfer fram Income & Expenditure Account |
- Depreciation 303.63 303.62
- Qthers 2,446.39 2,446.39
Transfer of 75% of Income genarated to Development fund 167.55 167.55
Total utilization- B 2,750.02 167.55 2,917.57
Net Balance As At The Year-End (A-B) 13,904.92 5.50 13,910.42
As on March 31, 2023
Particular General Fund Development Fund Total
2zlance as at April 1, 2022 transferred from CESS 112.87 112 87
Donation/grants recaived during the year 9,800 5,800.00
Transfer From Permanent Statutory Fund 89.48 89.49
Total additian - A 9,912.87 89.49 10,002.36
Less:
Transferrad to CSR fund 112.87 112.87
Transfer fram Income & Expenditure Account <
- Others 1,845.06 1,845 06
Revanue Expenditure 8949 3% 49
Total utilization - B 1,957.93 89.49 2,047.42
Net Balance As At The Year-End (A-B) 7,954.94 7,954.94




Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

4 Long-Term Liabilities

particular Curre
nt Year =
Retention money for Capital works IS OR Previous Year
Deposits from Students towards Hostel 5305 435.31
tal & s
= LESOR 485.31
5 Long-Term Provisions
Particular Current Y
ear -
Retirement and Terminal Benefits e Previous Year
- 26.
Total 38.90 z: ZZ
& Short Term Borrowings
L Particular Current Year Previ
Cash Credit from bank * 148929 ous Year
Total 1,489.29 5
7 Other Current Liabilities
[ Particular Current Year
Previ
Sundry Creditors vious Year |
For Capital Expenses 480.41
: s
For Others 154.58 LLe BB
provision for Capital Expenses i 42.99
Retention money for Capital works 669 27
income received in Advance 450 .‘0
b= 18 P
Advance Student Fees 5365 4 .40
&alaries Payable -; _}l; 3.28
Other Payables € -
Expenses payable 2.76 3.29
Statutory dues payable 125-53 )
2494 .
I 17.96
L Total
3,019.68 5460 1
8 Short-Term Provisions
Particular
3 C
Retirement and Terminal Benefits UrTRAt tear Previous Year
4.21
316
i Total
4.21 316

« Additional Disclosure on Cash Credit from bank

a. Details of Facilities

For working capitél purpose from HDFC bank with sactioned over draf
3,000 lakhs. The facilities are valid till October 03, 2024

b. Details of Security

gecured aginst fixed deposit of 1,500 lakhs with HDFC bank

¢. Terms of repayment

. to be serviced by th ~
nterest needs to be serviced by the 3rd of every month

d. Rate of interest
76%pa

B

tlimit of T 1,500 lakhs and’Ga
a.i@%%é-‘i Mes of %

Q[
wi e
A Vs
{ 1" | ;
LN e
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Chanakya University
(Fstavlished under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 47 of 2021)
9 Fixed Assets
As on March 31, 2024
Particular I| Gross Hlock Depreﬂa"liqpfﬁmorﬁzatinn o Net Block
1 Opening Value | Addiuon 1. Deletion Closing Value Opemng Value For the year bieletion Closing Value Dpemng Value Closing Valug
Tangible Assets _1
||' alhd
| easenold aghts m land [reter footnate
;] Dnisloney Llah 43 - 514543 103 9% 5148 155.93 504148 4.989.50
[ Buldangs
| Auntding 15,263.89 15.263.8% E 290.45 290.45 14,573 45
| Temporary straciure 13.42 23.42 394 3949 19.48
|
[I winiture & Hixtures 147 64 3260 40 50 A19.145 1360 1913 214 aa.59 134.04 375.15
|I.i.-u".}u1|-!s& Fetipherals 115.58 14172 25730 23.89 50.09 71398 91.649 183.12
Taervers & Netwiorks 1,738.56 1.738.56 1/9.60 - 17960 1,558.496
Wlecirical & ather Foguipments 2,436.56 - 2,230.56 11526 11526 2,121.30
'l.al\ Lauspiment 21 a2 - 726 126 234.94
Plant & Machinery 19.23 19.23 L : 1.7 17.51
Office Fquipments §99 22230 1.96 230.32 139 20,00 (.36 2110 160 2089.22
Vehicls 44,08 157 - 54.66 G4a6 5.90 12 37 1063 42.29
Library books 821 1887 47.08 821 38.87 4708
Total for Current Year - (A) S472M 20,246.93 4146 25,678.41 15751 H04.25 8.50 953.27 5,315 44 24,725.12
‘ Intangible Assets
[Softwar e 10,48 4.05 1.67 12.87 1.06 3.04 0.56 5.51 7.42 132
Total for Current Year - (B) R 10 a8 405 Les 12.87 .06 304 0.56 5.54 1.42 1.3
;lctal Fixed Assets for Current Year - (A+B) 5,483.42 20,250.98 4313 25,691.28 160.57 807.29 9.06 958.81 5,322.86 24,732.44
Captal Work-in-progress 14,042.4%9 20,452 21 18,638.30 16,406.40 14,092,409 16,406.40
THRANSFER 1O ASSETS
INet Work-In-Progress - (B) 14,092.49 20,952.21 18,638.30 16,406.40 14,032.49 16,406.40
Note: Depreciation for the year Iii'tldués_t 7.93 Lakhs towards the assets of the school of Bio-Sclence
Nate: Pending receipt of flaal bills of contractors in respect of capitalized paortion during the year, the University has capitalized based on esti d work ¢




As on March 31, 2023

Particular

Ta ngible Assets

Leasehiobd rghts in land (etes foa

Brpehow )

Furonlure & Fodures

| onpuiters & Preriphierals
litant & Rachindry

| thee Fguipiients

Jeetoe i

Lila ary books

| Total for Current Year (A}

intangible Assels

willwdre

[Totai tor Current Year - (B)

I
Itotal Fixed Assets for Current Year

|i apral WO b an D ET RS
THANSEF R TCHASSE LB

Net Work-In-Progress (8)

P ontnte

Lanid has bt ket LONE
A ke

price 4 e ldifl

. P

Chanakya University

Fotablis)yes

L wanter the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 3/ of 2021)

| Gross Bog s, Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
\ Balance as at
Batance as at Apnl L april 1, 2022
| 2022 uanderrsd wransferred fram
| Opemng Value trom (155 s Addamion Clasing Value Opening Value CESS For the yedr Closing Value Opening Value Closing Value
mote |
| 514543 | - 5,145 43 5197 51.97 1019 5,0493.46 5,041.48
'| s i
32498 115.16 14264 - 0.66 12,94 13.60 3183 134.04
95,1 102.94 11558 - 0.87 23.02 23.89 1197 91.69
088 a1 899 0.03 137 1.39 0.86 760
1937 m 4708 - 2.16 1.29 6.40 3723 A b2
an 821 221 821 -
5,231.00 24193 541243 % 559.69 101.82 157.51 5,175 13 531543
8.78 10.48 021 2.85 3.06 1.49 142
878 1048 - 0.1 2,85 106 1.49 142
{A+B) 250.71 5,483.42 = 55.90 104.67 160.57 5,176.82 5,322.85
13,538.27 14,092.49 2 5494.21 14,092.49
13,538.27 14,092.49 2 14,092.49

Tt least

A, Khota el are also to beobiained in the name of the Unversity.

try ATie Unsversity from KIADD for 99 years The premium paid provisionally has hee

1 shown under the head "Lease

hold rights' above. The University is liable 1o pay the (Ii!lumn?
=

b
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Chanakya University

(£stablished under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

10 Long term Investments

Particular Current Year Previous year
permanent Statutory Endowment Fund =
Bank deposits 2,595.00 1,517.00
Mutual Fund 1,000.00
Other Deposit** 1,500.00
Lien marked in favour of Principal Secretary, Dept. of Higher education
*  Govt. of karnataka to an extent of ¥ 1,500 Lakhs
=+ pledged as security for Over draft facility availed
Total 4,095.00 2,517.00
11 Long-Term Loans and Advances
Particular Current Year Frevious year
Deposits 33.16 £9.47
Construction advance 76.99 §25.46
Advance to others 44.44 0.28
Muobilization advances 510.70 1,153.98
Total 665.29 2,149.20
12 Current Investments
Particular Current Year Previous year
Mutual Fund
From Education Chair 375.00 3co.co
Other Mutuz! Fund 322.36 3,500.00
697.36 3,800.00
Less: Fair market value adjustment in respect of short term investment - (0.04)
Total 697.36 3,799.96
13 Cash and cash equivalents
Particular Current Year Previous year
Cash in Hand . .00
Cheque in Hand 1,413.00
Bank Balances 560.23 1,011.98
Short term Bank deposits
_On account of Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund
. Other Dapesit =
Total ¢
560.23 2,424.98/].
Additional Disclosure for investmant in Mutual Fund as at year end _L
particular Unit NAVin Cost Market Value \'
- Research Chair
\CICH Pru Asset Allocatar Fund 353,993.01 103,756 300.00 367.29
\CICH Pru Ulira ghort Term Fund Reg (Gl 296,780 83 25 1116 75 00 75.12
Otner Mutual Fund .
\CICI Pru Asset Allogator Fund 111,101.50 103.7564 9354 27
gl galanced Advantage Fund Reg £15,037 67 13.6653 87 88 1 8
HOFC Savings Funds - Regular Plan - Growth 99.942 41 59 789 54.40 59,75
" [ c-pt Altocatar Fund - Grawth 84,173:10 103 7564 86 54 &
ICICE Pri ASSE ‘
L ———— "\ Total 597 36 816.14

- \\%

‘2.:’? e
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a??.’ft-_tgoi:‘gr;/ Chanakya University
ik
(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)
14 Short-Term Loans and Advances
Particular Current Year Previous year
Advances to employees 064 0.71
TDS Receivable 38.01 40.81
Excess TDS Paid 21.73 21.73
Advance to CESS 14.21 0.47
Other receivables 11.25 2
Total 85.84 63.72
15 Other Current Asset
r Particular Current Year Previous year |
Prepaid Expenses 23.38 1.73
Student Fees Receivable 92.18 2.86
PGCET Receivable 46.05
Grant Receivable 7.04 =
Accrued Interest
- On account of Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund 34 .82 3.09
- Other Deposit 3.42 .
Total 206.89 768
16 Academic Receipts
Particular Current Year Previous period
Tuition fee
-From Students 266.45 17.74
-Fram Scholarship
- Through donations 67.20 30.64
- University funded 97.30 "
Total Tuition fee - (A) 430.95 43.38
Admission fee 26.45 7.65
Application fee 12.19 2.04
Transportation fee 14.26 3
Program fee 2.40 0.89
Other Academic fees - (B) 55.30 10.58
Total (A+B) 486.25 58.96
17 Hostel Receipts JE—
Particular Current Year Previous period
Hostel Fees
-From Students 218.25 2
-From Scholarship 70.86 11.30 .
aQLLl
Total 289.10 /.30 |/l
i
|
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Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

18 Other Income
Particular Current Year Previous period
Interest income 185.86 161.48
Wwithdrawn from School of Bio-Science 37.39 }
Penalty & Damages 69.74 )
Grant Income 48.28 .
Profit on sale mutual fund 153.20 0.94
Miscellaneous income 2.95 .
Provision for dimunition in the value of mutual fund withdrawn 0.04 g
= Total 497.46 162.42
19 Employee Benefit Expense
[ Particular Current Year Previous period
[ salaries and Wages 1,022.27 691.70
Contribution to Provident Fund 19.95 8.95
staff Welfare Expenses 8.53 6.33
Gratuity Expenses 10.43 11.79
Leave Encashment 2.86 18.03
Total 1,064.04 736.80
20 Academic Expenses
Particular Current Year Previous period
Professional Charge 359.04 78.62
University funded scholarship 97.30 .
Early bird discount 16.70 .
Honorarium €6.47 9.67
Towards School of Bio-Science 37.39 )
Registration & Application Fees 50.42 30.60
Stipend to Students 13.65
Academic Expenses 28.02 2.45
Membership & Subscription 947 5 g4
Total 678.46 127.27
L e
21 Hostel Expenses
Particular Current Year Previous period
Hostel Expenses
. Electricity Charges 13.57
. Food & Beverages 142.07 10.90
. Housekeeping 25.70
. Security Guard : 35.11 :
Total 10.90

e




(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

22 Finance Cost

Chanakya University

Particular Current Year Previous period
Bank Charges 0.48 19.16
Interest Charges 58.58 -
Total 59.06 19.16
23 General Expenses
Particular Current Year Previous period

Security Guard Expense 12335 =
Consulting Charges 106.75 s
Rent
- on building 568 e
- on equipment 13.48 S
House Keeping Charges 90.89 ”
Landscaping Works o578
Repairs & Maintenance
-on buil.dmgs F—— -
- on vehicles ;
12.25 7.35
- on others
Taxi & Local Conveyance 3.88 1.79
Office Maintainance 70.44 73.18
Telephone and Internet Charges 35.59 75.36
Property Tax 49.91 17.79
Transportation Charges 42.00
Printing and Stationary 38.35
Electricity and power 29.34 17.09
Insurance 39.06
Outstation Travelling Expense 26.17
Assets Discarded 32.99 21.52
community Development Expenses 34,18
Hospitality Sg:ii
Water charges Mg
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 12.81
Fuel and Gas Expenses 052
Rates and Taxes . -
Auditors Remuneration % i
Program Expense o
Software Subscriptions s
Loss on sale of asset o
Miscellaneous 001
postage & Telegram it
Land Lease to KIADB i
Leasehold Improvements
Expenses on seminar/Workshops
provision for d'imﬁnition in the value of mutual fund
Total
1,126.29




Chanakya University

(Established under the Chanakya University Act, 2021 - Karnataka Act No. 37 of 2021)

24 Other notes to the financial statements

1 Capital commitments :
Estimated amount of contrac
2,722/- Lakhs for previous year.

« remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is Rs. 8,088/~ Lakhs for current year and R
i : rand Rs

f/

2 Employee Benefits:
) a) Defined Contribution Plans
The University's Contribution to Provident an

f

d National Pension Scheme is expensed to the Income and Expenditure Account, which is as follows:

rs
[ all the amounts are in Lakhs ¥, urless stherwise stated)

I——
gl. Particulars
2023-24 -
N No. 2022-23
a) Emglover's provident Fund =
: 8.95
Total T 22
b} Gratuity Unfunded) :-
s e e R S |
. = | &1l the smounts are in Lakhs T. unless ath I
particulars £33 atherwise stated) |
March 31, |
(i) Amounts in Bolance Sheet rch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 f
. Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO} — |
- Net Liability recognised in Balance Sheet 22-1; 11.79 |
2 11.79
(ii) Amount recognised in [ncome and Expenditure Account
Expenses included in “Employee genefit Expenses” -
The break up of the same petween "Current Cost and ‘intarest ' has not been furnished by the : 11.79
5 actuary.
¢) Encashment of Leave (un{undedj:-
particulars
(i) Amounts in Balance Sheet March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
pefined ganefit Obligation (DBO) )
Net Liability recognisad in Balance Sheet 53.89 18.03
.89 18.03
(ii) Amount recognised in Income and Expenditure Account
2.86 18.C3

"Employee genefit Expenses”

1 gxpanses included in
petween 'Current Cost' and 'intarest’ has not bzen furnished by the

The break up of the same

actuary.

r—4 <

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

——
Actuarial Assumptions

N Discount rate g
| salary increass 7.30%
Attrition rate 5_-00% 5.00%
petrement age (in yearsh: 15 00% 2.00%
Non-Teaching Staff
ed &0
65 85

Teaching staff

ffnr-:_‘—‘-h-
' ."w{"f
) '. ~f‘.<\

—_—




3 List of related parties:

{ All the ameunts are 1o Likhs 3. unlets st rwise staled)

a} |Pparties where control exists University is managed by the Board of Governors.
b} [Key Management Personnel 1) Mr, M P Xumar
2) Dr Sushanth Joshi
3] Prof. Yashavantha Dongre

¢} |Enterprise owver which Key Managemant CESS
Persanpel have significant Influenge

a) [Transactions with related parties Nature of Transaction As on March 31, 2024 |As on March 31, 2023
Prof. Yashavantha Congre 1) Salary
Dr Sushanth Joshi 1) Salary 22:3 :g';g
Mr. M P Kurmar Donation 2.000.00 .
From CESS -
2} Asseis (net) as at April 3, 2021 vested in the University from CESS. R
3} Donations received il Miarch 31, 2022 on behalf of the University and transfarred tao It by N 13'130' 10
€SS, (Including Permanent Statutory Endowment Fund received fram Mr. M P Kumar} 30500
4) tiabilities as at April 1, 2022 vested in the University from CESS. _
5) Expenses incurred from April 1, 2022 on behalf of University till the date of operational - 80.09
segregation and reimbursed by the University 349.56
6) Income earned from April 1, 2022 on behalf of Univarsity till the date of operatianal . 142.40
segregation and reimbursed by them ‘
7) Donations received from April 1, 2022 on behalf of the University and transfacred to it by R 8.000.00
CESS,
8) Expenditure incurred in relation to assets from April 1, 2022 on behalf of University till the - 5,038.76
date of operatlonal segregation and reimbursed by the University
9) Balance due from CESS to the University as at March 31, 2024

14.21 047

Note: Data furnished insenal 2to g above are to the axtent identified by management,

4 Assets taken on operating lease
The University has taken certain properties on operating lease for a peviod of one year and in certain cases renewable for a further pari .
choice. The expenditure recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account for the year is Rs, 96.43 Lakhs {Previous year is Rs 98 D: L|Naru;>d atits
up of commitments as at March 31, 2024 was as under " .08 Lakhs), Break
-a) Upto ¢ne year Rs. il
-b} Between one and five years Rs. Nil

§ The Univarsity is in process of obtaining confirmation of balances from certain parties relayn i M
recaivable and consequent reconciliation, if any, will be completed is the ensuing year. g to advances, deposits, aCCOUNts payable and

& Some of the assets, liabilities, agreements etc. taken ovar from CESS pursuant to the Chanakya University Act, 2021 continues 1o remain in i
. cantinues 1o remain in it
7 Previous reporting periad’s figures have been regrouped wherever required in canformity with the i
presentation for the currant reposting pericd
g§ Depraciation an fixed assets in the Income and Expenditure account has been apportioned between th i
ancestricted funds on an estimated/provisional basis based on the funds utitized in *CSR Funds' (note 2) ang '0‘::1: anmlhlmm'E ot 31 oing it
r Donations’ {note 3) taking intQ

account funds recaived and utlization of the same towards fixed assets, pending camprehensive tracking of fu S
which is under progress. nds utilised to donation received




{ All the amgunts are in Lakhs T, unless otherwise stated)

3 List of related parties:

a) |Parties where control exists University is managed by the Board of Gevarnors.
o) |Key Management personnel 1) Mr. M P Kumar
2) Dr Sushanth Joshi
3) Prof. Yashavantha Dongre
¢) |Enterprise over which Key Management) gcq
persannal have significant Influence
d) [Transactions with related parties Mature of Transaction Ason March 31,2024 |As on March 31 20234\
prof. Yashavantha Dongre 1) Salary | 38.40 | 38.40
' [Or Sushanth Joshi 1) Salary ] 2207 | 5097
’Er M P Kumar [Donatien [ 7.000.00 | .
From CESS 1 [

2) Assets (net) as at april 1, 2022 vested in the University from CESS. | 13.130.10
3) Donations recaived till March 31,2022 on behalf of the University and transferred to it by - ‘ 13'050.01

CESS. (Including Permanent Statutary Endowment Fund received fram Mr. M P Xumar)

4) Liabilities as at April 1, 2022 vested in the University from CESS. T l 20.05
5) Expenses incurred from April 1, 2022 on behalf of University till the date of operational " 34956
segregation and reimbursed by the University \
6) Income earned f_rom April 1, 2022 on behalf of University till the date of operaticnal 142.40 =
segregation and reimbursed by them \ f —
7) Donatians received from April 1, 2022 on behalf of the Unwersity and transferred to it by 000,00 .
CESS. \ UL
8) Expenditure incurrad in relation to assets from April 1, 2022 on behalf of University till the —I
date of operational segregation and reimbursed by the University ” \ 503875
9) Balance due from CESS to the University as at March 31, 2024 S
14.21 l !
Note: Data furnished in seriz! 210 @ above are tothe extent identified by managameant “’_:
| VT
' 1

4 Assets taken on operating lease
The University has taken certain properties on operating lease for a period of one year and in certain cases rz £ : .
choice. The expenditure recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account for the year is Rs. 96.43 Lakhsip 'rj'ewable fc_)r 3 further pariod at 1t ﬂ
up of commitments as at March 31, 2024 was as under revious year is Rs 98.08 Lakhs). Break
-a) Upto cne year Rs. Nil _
-p) Between one and five years Rs. Nil q
Fié

5 The University is in process of obtaining confirmation of balances from certain parties relating to advancas
racaivable and consaguent raconciliatien, if any, will be completad is the ensuing year. ces, deposits, accoun:s payable and 3

6 Some of the assets, liabilities, agreements etc. taken over from CESS pursuant to the Chanakya University Act, 2021
. 2021 continues to remain in its
7 Previous reporting period’s figures have been regroupad wherever required in conformity with the presentation for th
€ rthe current reporting peri !
e period. I]I

g Depraciation on fixed assets in the Income and Expenditure account has bean apportioned between those at
unrestricted funds on an estimated/pravisional basis based on the funds utilized in 'CSR Funds' (note 2) and _Omprij;rlbu.tahlc to restricted and !
) sk 2 n g! s .
account funds received and utilization of the same tawards fixed assats, pending comprehensive tracking of fu .a.tlon; (note 3) taking intQ L]
which is undar progress. f funds utilised to donation recewed

e
(
As per our report attached of even date For and on behalf of Board of Governors "
For B.K.Ramadhyani & Co, LLP
C'nart-_*'ed Accounts %
FAM. DE—IE?S&!SEOCCIEI - = oa " -, - i ﬁ
[ | \ 7 X ‘_..-— - ) I!\ <. ) ¢ s 1
f - UV {Prof. M.K. Sridhar] {Praf Yashavantha Dangral |
Founder Chancellar Vige Chancellor _
(oA Vasuk! H 51 . : -~
parmnef . J
\empersnip Mo 212013 N p
A .." P ."I
clsce Bangalere y
a8 {Dr Sushant foshi) (Sr1 Sujban Ghash)

g /2023
5 |,E.-l.‘f.--c- Re ”
Bstray Chief Frrance Otficer
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Minutes of the 1 meeting of Fee Regulation Committee
Venue of the meeting: Yuvaka Sangha, Jayanagar, Bengaluru
Date: June 14, 2023

Time: 3.00 PM

Members present: -

Hon'ble Dr Justice N. Kumar Former Judge, High Court of Karnataka, Bangalore Chairman
Shri Nagaraj Reddy, Member, Board of Govemnars, Secretary-CESS Member
Shri Madan Gopal, IAS, Former Additional Chief Secretary, Government of Karnataka ~ Member
Prof M R Narayan, Professor, Fiscal Policy Institute Member
Shri Vasantha Krishna K, Legal Counsel, MEMG | Pvt. Ltd Member
Shri Sujiban Ghosh, CFO, Chanakya University Member Secretary

Special Invitee present: -
CA S Deenadayal, Chartered Accountant

Leave of Absence:

Leave of absence was granted to Shri Umashankar, Principal Secretary, Ministry of Higher Education

Government of Karnataka

Following representatives from Chanakya University were present to assist the Committee and furnish
the information and clarifications required by them.

Prof Yashavantha Dongre, Vice Chancelior, Chanakya University
Dr Sushant Joshi, Registrar, Chanakya University

Prof Yashavantha Dongre. Vice Chancellor, Chanakya University warmly welcomed the Chairman and
Members and assured full cooperation and assistance to the committee to enable it to function effectively

nd introduced all to Dr. Justice N Kumar and Members and expressed his gratitude to the Chairman and

members for accepting the invitation of the University

The Chairman of the Committee then requested Shri Sujiban Ghosh, member secretary, to take up agenda
itens for discussion Both Shri Sujiban Ghosh, member secretary and Prof Yashavantha Dongre, Vice

Chancellor, started the discussion with elaborate presentation of the background of Chanakya University,

1
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its formation under “The Chanakya University Act, 2021 (Kamataka Act No. 37 of 2021) of the Government
of Karnataka. It received the assent of Government of Karnataka on 11.10.2021, Pariamentary affairs &
Legislation Secretariat Notification No: DPAL 44 SHASANA 2021, Bengaluru, dated 11.10.2021 and
commenced its operation effective from 05.03.2022,

3

av

Fees for the years 2022-23 and 2023-24 were earlier proposed and approved through the Board of
Management to cater to the ongoing admission process. In compliance with section 44 of The Chanakya

ay g

University Act, 2021, Fee Regulation Committee was constituted at the 3" meeting of Board of Governors
held on March 28, 2023, and subsequently, the constitution of the Committee was notified on February

25,2023

AN A,
¥ u_. Y

Prof Yashavantha Dongre, Vice Chancellor gave a detailed introduction through power point presentation
on the history of the institution, courses offered for the year 2022-23 and 2023-24, strength of the students

7
i ¥

r
w

d manpower and facilities provided in the aforesaid University and management structure of the University.
He briefed the members about the University, the status of infrastructure being built up in the global
campus and various kinds of career centric courses being offered in diverse disciplines. He also mentioned
the various research activities being undertaken in the campus including interdisciplinary research. During

[ =
b

the deliberation, he also mentioned various scholarship schemes being offered to the students based on

P criteria.

P Presently, for the academic year 2022-23, the university has the 4 years honours graduate and post

e b1 & & ]

graduate programmes under the following 3 schools: -
a) Schaool of Commerce & Management |
b) School of Arts, Humanities & Social Sciences
c) School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

T T . Y . s . Y Y

= -

Future plans: -

i a) Flagship management programme MBA and MCA will be launched from the next academic year:

2023-24
b) Flagship Law programmes including courses on public policy will be launched from the next

academic year 2023-24 with graduate and post graduate programmes.

‘N c¢) Flagship engineering programmes will be launched from the academic year 2024-25
‘ ) d) Present student strength is around 116, which is estimated to touch almost 10,000 students in the
Jd . academic year: 2028-30
B [/ Page2 of 10,7
/ : wle | ]
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Shri Sujiban Ghosh, member secretary, explained to the members the mandate of the Committee /s 44(2
of The Chanakya University Act, 2021, details of which are as follows: - )

1. The University is to prepare its tuition fee structure and send it for approval of the committee
constituted for the purpose. The fee in respect of the admissions of engineering students made
through Common Entrance Examination conducted by the State Government, shall be fixed by the

State Government
The Committee shall consider the fees structure of all the courses prepared by the University, if it

is satisfied that the proposed fee is sufficient for generating resources for meeting the recurri
ing

expenditure of the University, savings required for further development of the University and not

unreasonably excessive.
In term of section 44, Chanakya University appointed a Committee of Experts vide notification

dated 25.02.2023 for approving the fee structure. Fee structure for the year 2022-23 and 2023

24 is placed for ratification.

shri Sujiban Ghosh made a presentation on the methodology adopted for arriving at the Unit cost of
Education & the various assumptions made therein. He explained that the cost has been arrived at aft
ailer

dering all relevant items of expenditure and the possible escalation in expenses in the future years

consi
ked out separately for various disciplines & the courses being

He mentioned that the cost has been wor
offered. The projections of cost were provided year-wise for all the constituent institutions offering different
ren

courses. The presentation explained the methodology by which the Total Unit Cost per course has b
een

arrived at which included the following.

Unit Cost of education for each course

Assumptions made on the computation of unit cost.

Student strength and duration of different courses

Cost of Funds employed (own)
ed Capital Expenditure on various infrastructure projects that are being undertake
n

o b Q30 N

Project

to upgrade the existing infrastructure as well as to create state of the art facilities which a
re

funded through philanthropic: contribution from donors.

Discussion on the Computation:

URCES OF FUNDING: -

sO 4
Nef Operating Tuition Fees

a)

|
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b) Philanthropic contribution from donors for university project
c) Revenue from Chairs derived out of contributions.
d) Hostel Income (Considered at net amount after deducting expenses)

¢) Interest Income on Investments

SOURCING OF DATA AND INFORMATION (All data have been reported in Rs lakhs, wherever
applicable, unless otherwise stated) '
a) The computation of unit cost is based on the provisional financial for FY 2022-23 and
estimation for projected financial for FY 2023-24 to FY 2029-30
b) The cost of education is computed based on the year-wise projected student numbers and

the projected costs.
c) Operating expenses have been considered based on the activity of each school with

increase of 5% to 10% based on the nature of expense for the years 2023-24 to 2029-30
d) Depreciation is calculated on written down value method as per Schedule VI of Companies
Act, considering the fixed asset requirement for the entire course.

The operating costs are segregated under following broad heads: -
a) Staff payment & benefits

b) Academic expenses

¢) Fee Concession / Scholarship

d) Research expenses

e) Administrative & General expenses
f) Admission & QOutreach

g) Branding costs

h) Repairs & Maintenance

iy Depreciation as per Companies Act

COMPUTATION OF FACULTY NUMBERS AND COSTS: -
Faculty salary costs were computed based on the following regulatory parameters: -

Gomposition of faculty:

1 Composition of faculty As per norms | Actually followed
11% 24%

22% 36%
67% 40%

Professor
Assaciate Professor

JAssistant Professor




=

=dF = g

. o8
N g

-

23 CHANAKYA

Wi ) UNIVERSITY

In computation of faculty numbers, we have considered the following composition: -

Total Faculty 100%
Adjunct Faculty 10%
Contractual Faculty 20%
Regular Faculty 70%
Salary costs of Faculty and other staff :-

a) For FY 2023-24, faculty student ratio is considered at 1:15 to cater to requirement for next year in
view of introduction of new programmes.

b) From FY 2024-26 onwards, faculty student ratio is revised at 1:25. However, for engineering

courses, it is considered at 1:20 in line with AICTE guidelines.

Following table depicts CTC which is considered for computing salary costs of faculty with 5%

increase on YoY basis. CTC was calculated on the basis of 7" Pay Basic: -

c)

Compensation - BASIC considered based on the 7th Pay adeopted
Considered 7Th Pay 7Th Pay Basic
Professor 1,55,000 2,47,500 1,44,200
Associate 1,25,000 2,059,000 1,314
Assistant 80,000 1,43,500 57,700

The above-mentioned CTC was applied for applied for all except for Engineering, details of which are

explained in separate slides under the presentation for School of Engineering.

d) Recruitment of Non-Teaching staffis considered from 2024-25 as this will be required mainly for School

of Engineering.
e) Number of positions for Management & other support staff are based on the expected strength as

furnished for FY 2023-24 as it is anticipated that there will be no mare major recruitment drive in this

segment.

Other Assumptions on costs of education for the year 2023-24:

a) Scholarship: [t is assumed that 24% of the budgeted student strength will be eligible for
scholarship. Average scholarship amount varies based on the programmes and fee structure.

Chanakya University also invites scholarship under the Government of India scheme.
b) Early Bird Scheme (EBD) :- This is offered as Rs 5000/- per student for those getting admission

within April 30, 2023.
c) Housekeeping Expenses:
568,135 sq. ft

This is assumed to be Rs 3/- per unit on the constructed area of

Page 5 oﬁ;{i{:
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d) Electricity Charges: Thisis considered at the blended rate of Rs 6.75/- per unit. Unit consumption
is arrived at after considering 0.25 units / day for 365 days.

e) Water charges: Itis assumed at 50 Ltr portable water + 200 Ltr per student for utilities.

f) Admission expenses & Branding: The details were estimated under different heads for Rs

408,92 lakhs and Rs 85.30 lakhs respectively.

Learning & Development costs: Total cost allocated by HR for FY 2023-24 is Rs 8 lakhs, out of

which, Rs 4 lakhs will be spent in the month of June 2023 and the balance in the month of Nov-23. :

h) Staff Recruitment expenses: The budgeted amounts are estimated at Rs 59 lakhs under various |
heads of activities.

i) Insurance: Property insurance is considered @ Rs 300/- per student and Student Medicare is |
considered @ Rs 1300/- per student, totalling to Rs 1600/- per student.

j) Costof funds has been computed @11% on total projected yearly revenue from the year 2023-24.

k) Research expenses: This is based on the input received from Research division for Rs 162 lakhs

under various the following categaries:

[ Categories Rs in lakhs
Working paper ' 12.85
Research monograph 8.85

TKS Conference 5.00
Chanakya Conference 30.50
International Conference on Temple Management 34.50
Seminars 10.60

[ Fellowship programmes - 60.00

Total 162.29

Basis of allocation of costs to different schools for the year 2023-24:-

a) Academic costs are allocated based on input received from different schools for FY 2023-24, and
for the years 2024-25 onwards, this is computed based on revenue generation for each school.
There are some common costs which are allocated between schools based on revenue generation

for each school.
by Faculty salary costs for the year 2023-24 have been allocated directly to respective schools as per

\ r computation based on regulatory norm
| ‘ er expenses: office & general SXpnsEs research expenses, sports activities admission &

s for each course.

c) All oth , ne
\\;“ h branding costS repairs & maintenance and depreciation are allocated based on revenue
l generation each school.
} , 4 .I . .
/. Page 6 of 10
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d) For schools requiring laboratories, infrastructure, and other major set up, the relevant costs and
noc \ n
depreciation are separately allocated fo these schools. Cost of funds has been allocated based

on revenue for each school.

Yearly Intake and student strength:

e) Actual student strength for the current year 2022-23 is 116. From the year 2023-24, student
strength was projected to be 916 based on admission pattern and keeping in mind the ;Jrojected
student strength assumed to be around 10,000 in the year 2029-30 and further.

Increase in Fee structure by an average 5% on YoY basis. Fee structure for all the courses is kept
low to cater to those students with merit but having inadequate financial resources. Fee structure
for existing students remains the same throughout the duration of the course. In addition, the
university offers several scholarship schemes to take care of students getting admitted on rr,xerit-
For computing school-wise revenue, amounts receivable through grant /

cum-means basis.
donation have not been considered as there is element of uncertainty in nature. However, at
! . a

university level, these have been projected.
Reasonable and affordable hostel Income is computed. Increase in hostel fees is assumed to b
o be

5% on YoY basis. Increased hostel fee is applicable to all the students, new as well as the existi
! isting

9)

students.

h) Comparative Fees Structure of various other Universities was provided for the committ
mmittee’s

information as discussed in the previous meeting. The committee has taken note of the
same.

Fixed Assets are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on fixed asset is d
; rov
written down value method at the following rates as per Schedule VI of the Companies Act: provided on

Fpets | bepeatonates

Land 0%

Buiidings 5%

Electrical Equipment 10%
Office Equipment 10%
Furniture & Fixture 10%
Computer & accessories 15%
Vehicles 10%
Library books 100%

o comiTRI R

Capex Qutlook
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In view of the above launching of new programmes, substantial increase in student intake over the years

and increased faculty and staff strength, establishment of adequate infrastructure will be of paramount

importance. In this regard, construction of the university's global campus at Devanahalliis under way which
is expected to be completed in 8 years' time. The construction will be carried out in 4 phases, e.g. Phase

1A, 1B,1C and 1D covering the following: -
a) Administration & Library Block
b) 3 Academic Blocks
c¢) Food Court
d) Girls' hostel and Boys' hostel
e) Faculty housing
f)  Guest house
g) Sports institute

Following table depicts the details of Capex over 8 years: -

ijitﬂI Expenditure Flan [INRIn Lakhs) S
|
‘ Particulars Arealn sg.ft  2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total
' al
| A.land costs 5,150 -
B. Canstruction Cost Square Feet 14,199 30465 45,260 14146 21,218 14,346 3,536 4 o
Phase 1A 795,009 13,635 15,765 143,970
Phase 18 817,719 564 14,700 28578 29400
Phase 1C 8.00,000 17,682 14,146 3536 :::::
Phase 10 £,00,000 17,682 14,146 3,536 35
32,12,723 364
¢. Computers & Software 125 151 258 3s3 501 607 538 €03 3201
D. Equipment & other assets E4 128 250 aco 250 355 300 300 1,948
E, Research Equipment 163 100 100 130 5o 3 - vt
Total 5,150 14,338 30,546 46,868 14,904 22069 15157 4,485 953 1,54820

Observations and Recommendation of the Committee

The Committee has observed the following: -

a) Fee structure for humanities courses should be slightly lower as compared to science & commerce
programmes. There should be differentiation between UG and PG fee structure.
b) Non-Teaching and Non-Technical staff strength should be reduced as per the requirement over a

period.

c) Fee Regulation Com
commencement of admis
approve the fee structure for th

mittee meeting should be held at least 3-4 months; prior to the date of annual
sions. This should be followed by at least 3 meetings to review and

e forthcoming academic year.

m‘\
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Ratification

The Committee, after due deliberations, ratified the following fee structure for the years: 2022-23 & 2023-

24 as depicted below:

Yearwive Schedule of Fees for 2022-23 Baich

{Amount in Rs.)
Coarse Secondyear | Thirdyear | Fourthyear | Fifith year Total
e
SCHOOL/COLRSE Duration First Year Course fee course fee courte fte | coursefee | coorsefee |Course lee
Tuition Registretion Total Fees
fees
Ay T5.000 5000 80,000 75,000 75,000 75000 3,05.000
Ay 60,000 5000 65,000 €0.000 60,000 60,000 245,000
4y 60,000 5,000 65,000 60,000 60,000 0,000 245,000
2y 75,000 5000 80,000 75,000 155,000
4y 74,000 5.000 30,000 75.000 75,000 T5.000 305.000
dyrs 90,000 3,000 95,000 SC.000 0,000 90.000 165000
2y 75,000 5,000 30,000 75,000 135,00
g 20,000 5,000 95,000 50,000 90,006 S 365,000
2yrs 75,000 5,000 89,000 3,000 155,000
Svrs 75,000 5.000 0,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 305,500
¥
Yearwise Schedule of Fees for 2023-24 Baich
(Amouont in Rs.)
pre="= Course Secondyear | Thirdyear | Foorth year | Fifith Total
First Year Coorse foe ith year al.
SCHOOUCOLRSE Duration eourse fee coursefee | coursefec | course fee | Course fee
Tuition Registration Total Fees
fees
- i : Social Sci -3
e 4yrs 95.000 5,000 1,00,000 95,000 95,000 95,000 1.85,000
i Ayss 70,000 5,000 75,000 70,000 0000 70,000 285,600
'e..; In w1l Services ayrs 95,000 5000 1,00.000 95,000 95,000 95,000 385000
dyrs 70,000 5000 75,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 285000
Tyrs 83,000 5,000 90,000 85,000 175,000
dyrs 75,000 5000 30,000 75000 75,000 75,000 305600
dyrs 1,20,000 3,000 1.25,000 1,20.000 1.20450 1.20.600 435000
s 2yrs 95,000 5,000 1.00.000 §3.000 195,000
A 2yrs 1,560,660 5,000 1.55.000 150,000 1.05.000
School of Commerce & ¥ emenl ) ) ;
ke 4yrs 116,003 5.000 1.t5,000 110,000 1.10.000 1.10.000 415,000
g Rey 2313 95,000 5,000 100,000 95,000 1,35000
M Com dyrs 95,000 5,000 1,00,000 95,000 95,000 95,000 3,85000
ng o 25 | 27000 5.000 280,000 275,000 5,55000
_— 110,000 5,000 1.15.000 110000 110,000 L1osc0 | 1aegoe| 555000
Syrs 120,000 5,000 1.25.000 1,26000 120,000 1,20.000 1.20,000 605000
s 60,000 5,000 65.000 0000 60,000 60,000
75,000 5,000 80,000 75000 75.000 75,000 305000
b i i 1.05,000 5000
Lyr 1.00.030 5400 REEL 1.03.000
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The Chairman and other members of the Committee placed on record the appreciation for the efforts of
the Chanakya University team in bringing up all the relevant data and information to support the ratification

of fee structure.

The meeting ended with a vote of thanks from the Vice Chancellor.

(Chairman)
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ADDENDUM for modification in Fee Structure

Academic Year 2022-23

SCHOOL/COURSE

Fee Structure to be read as

As earlier submitted to Fee

Regulation Committee for
ratification

School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

BSc

75,000

60,000

MSc

75,000

70,000

Academic Year 2023-24

As earlier submitted to Fee

Fee Structure to be read as |Regulation Committee for
SCHOOL/COURSE ratification
school of Arts, Humanities & Soclal Sciences
MSW 70,000 60,000

M

(Chadirman)

In respect of the circulation of the minutes of 1* Fee Regulation Committee meeting held on June 14,
2023, the Committee noted and ratified the following corrections:

N

\\ “Rage 1 0f1 /
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ADDENDUM for modification in Fee Structure

In respect of the circulation of the minuies of 1*' Fee Regulation Commilttee meeting held on June 14,

2023, the Committee noted and ratified the following corrections:

Academic Year 2022-23

As earlier submitted to Fee
Fee Structure to be read as |Regulation Committee for

SCHOOLfCOURSE ratification
School of Mathematics and Natural Sciences
75,000 60,000
BSc -
MSc : 70,000
— Academic Year 2023-24
framrmemem—— As earlier submitted to Fee
Fee Structure to be read as |Regulation Committee for
SCHOOL/COURSE ratification
L
s & Social Sciences
umanities & Socia
ﬁ?&m —— 70,000 60,000
sw_____————

o

(Chajrman)

-/ ! |J
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Minutes of the 2" meeting of Fee Regulation Committee
Venue of the meeting: Chanakya University, Global Cam pus, Davenahalii, Ba ngalore

Date: November 20, 2023
Time: 11:30 AM |
!\

Members present: -

Hon'ble Dr Justice N. Kumar Former Judge, High Court of Kamnataka, Bangalore Chairm
Shri Nagaraj Reddy, Member, Board of Governors, Secretary-CESS Membajn
Shri Madan Gopal, IAS, Former Additional Chief Secretary, Government of Karnataka Member
Prof M R Narayan, Prafessor, Fiscal Policy Institute

Shri Vasantha Krishna i, Legal Counssl, MEMG | Pwt, Ltd Member
CA 8. Deenadayal, Chartered Accountant b
Shri Sujiban Ghosh, CFO, Chanakya University Me mbe?:;nc?::am

Special Invitees present: - |
Prof Yashavantha Dongre, Vice Chancellor

Dr Sushant Joshi, Registrar
Shri Mchan Kumar Srinivasa, FO, Chanakya University |
Shri Mahesh Bhat, Chartered Accountant

Leave cf Absence:
Leave of absence was granted to Shri Umashankar, Principal Secretary, Ministry of Higher Educatio
n!

Government of Karnataka
I

Prof Yashavantha Dongre, Vice Chancellor, Chanakya University warmly welcomed the Chairman s

Members and assured full cooperation and assistance to the committee to enable it to function effectively ,

and introduced all to Dr. Justice N Kumar and Members and expressed his gratitude to the Chairman and

members for accapting the invitation of the University. - I
|

Confirmation of the Minutes of the 1%t meeting of Fee Regulation Committes
The minutes of the 1% meeting of the Fee Regulation Commitiee were approved by the Comm ittef/
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Review of Action Taken on Decislons during 1* Meeting of the Fee Regulation Committee
The Committee reviewed the actions taken for the decisions taken during the 1% meeting of the Fee
Regulation Committee.

The Committee was apprised con the following programmes: -

For the initial academic year 2022-23, the university had the 4 ysars honours graduate and 2 years' post
graduate programmes under the following 3 schools: -

a) School of Commerce & Management

b) School of Arts, Humanities & Social Sciences

¢) Schoot of Mathematics and Natural Sciences

Academic Year ; 2023-24 and Future Plans:--

a) Flagship management programmes MBA and MCA have been launched from the academic year,
2023-24

b) Flagship Law programmes including course on public policy have been launched from the

academic year 2023-24 with graduate and post graduate programmes.
c) Flagship engineering programmes will be launched from the academic year 2024-25
d) Present student strength is around 510, which Is estimated to touch almost 8,000 students in the

academic year: 2032-33

Shri Sujiban Ghosh, member secretary, explained to the members the mandate of the Committes w/s 44(2)

of The Chanakya University Act, 2021, details of which are as follows: -

The University is 1o prepare jts tuftion fee structure and send It for approval of the committee
constituted for the purpose. The fee in respect of the admissions of engineering students made
rance Examination conducted by the State Government, shall be fixed by the

L

through Commen Ent

State Government.
2. The Committee shall consider the fees structure of all the courses prepared by the University, if It

is satisfied that the proposed 1ee is sufficient for generating resources for meeting the recurring

expenditure of the University, savings required for further development of the University and not

unreasonably excessive.
In term of section 44, Chana
e proposed Fee

kya University appointed a Committee of Experts for approving the fee
l.

structure. Th

Structure for the year 2024-25 is placed far Commitlee’s approva \/
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Discussion on the Com putation:

SOURCES OF FUNDING: -

SOURCING OF
applicable, unl

presentation explained the methodology by which the Total Un
included the following.

1. it
Un Cest of education for each course over a span of 8 years (Actual f
Provisional for the year 2023-24 and projection for 2024-25 t0 203 or the year 2022-23,
2. Assumptions made on the computation of unit cost =
3. Studentstrength and duration of different courses
4. Projected Capital Expenditure on various infrastru
cture projects that are
being undertake,
n

to upgrade the existing Infrastructure as well as to create stato of the art facilit .
funded tirough philanthropic contribution from donors. acilities which are

a) Net Operating Tuiion Fees
b) Philanthropic cortribution from donors for university project

c) Revenue from Clairs derived out of contributions.
d) Hostel Income (Considered at net amount after deducting expenses)

e) Interest Income on Investments.

DATA AND INFORMATION (All data have been reported in Rs lakhs, wherever

ess othenise stated}

a) The compttation of average unit cast is based on the provisional financial for FY 2022-23
and estimalion for projected financial for FY 2023-24 to FY 2029-30

b) The cost oleducation is computed based ori the year-wise projected student numbers and

the prajected costs.
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v

& .
) F)peratnng expenses have been considered based on the activity of
i 9 ;
; ;creas.e :f 5% to 10% based on the nature of expense for the years 20;::: school with
epreciation i j
. p .|s calculated on written down value method as per Schedul *Ocom2029“30‘
ct, considering the fixed asset requirement for the entire cou ot penies
. rse.
The operating costs are segregated under following broad heads:
a) Staff payment & benefits .
b) Academic expenses
c) Fes Concession/ Scholarship

d) Research expenses
e) Administrative & General expenses

f) Admission & Outreach

g) Branding costs

h) Repairs & Maintenance

i) Depreclation as per Companies Act

NUMBERS AND COSTS: -

COMPUTATION OF FACUL
puted based on the following regulatory parameters:

Faculty salary costs wese com
Composition of faculty:

Composition of faculty As per norms Actually followed
Professor 11% 28%
Assaciate Professor 2i% 36%
Assistant Professor 67% | 40%

we have considered the following composition: -

In computation of faculty numbers,

Categories Comgasftian Increment <YoY
50% 5%

Hggy!ar Faculty
35% 5%

Adjunct/ Contraty{ . ===
TA 15% 5%
her staff:=

osts of Faculty and ot
t ratio is going towards 1:12 from 1:8 through efficient mobilisation of

Faculty studen
are being made t0 reach FSR at 1:15 through the following measures: -

Salary €
a) Presently,

resources, efforts
v Reduction in the number of majors
es at all levels. . |

~ Enhance Cross List programm
v Decreasé unigue credits / major- / |
!. el I'_. ]
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b) Faculty !ncludes Full time employees + Adjunct / Contractual + Teaching Assistants.
c) Following table dapicts CTC which is considered for computing salary costs of faculty with 5%

increase on YoY basis. CTC was calculated based on 7 Pay Basic: -

Professor £s1.75 lakhstofis 3
fakhs p.m.
Assaciate Professor | fis 1.25 lakhs ta Rs
1.75 lakhs p.m.
Assistant Professor | Rs 0.75 lakhstoRs
{125 lakhs p.m

d) The above-mentionsd CTC was applied for applied for all except for Engineering, details of which are

explained in separate slides under the presentation for School of Engineering.
e) Average CTC for Adunct/ Contractual facully is considered at Rs 9,60,000/- p.a. with 5% escalationon

YoY basis.

f) Recruitment of Non-Teaching staffis considered from 2024-25 as this will be required mainly for School
of Engineering.

g) Number of positions for Management & other support staff are based on the expected strength as
fumnished for FY 2023-24 and availability of further input from concerned departments for additional staft

requirement in this cat€gary.

Other Assumptions on costs of education:

+ Academic expenses have been projected based on student numbers and the prevalent rates per
mic and pastoral activities with cost inflation of 5%, both for Non-

student per yearfa’ each acade
ring separately.

ineering and Engineé |
v :"f l?ee h;g amount has been projscted as 10% of academic receipts for 2024-25 and thereafier
cholars
@ 5% on academic recelpts. o
(for non-engineering) is computed as follows; -

v Cost of Library bicks and e-resources
a) 100 Titles per program and 500 volumes
This is AICTE Nom. N
newal of subscription

b) E-Resources with 1@ 1D, [nslitutona! memberships, e.g., Delnet, IMB etc.
magazines, AMCs for . o been considered based on multifarious marketing and

. anses haV
v Admission & branding €XP n @ 5% on YoY basis.

i iviti i inflatio ' . .
branding activities, vnt;‘::tan d facility costs have been derived based on detailed calcu!ano:j./
v All the administaive

alignment with Adninistration team.

per program. We have 19 programs. Hence total 50019,

for online databases, print journals, newspapers &

/< PageSof 9 |

I
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v Research expenses are based on 5% on the revenue level. On an average, itis Rs 2 to Rs 2.50
lakhs p.a. per facuity.

v HR costs projection and the projection relating to number of management & support staff were
done based on inputfrom concerned departments and subsequent discussion for cost optimisation.

v Interest on term loan has been considered @ 11% (Subject to negotiation for the lower rate) and
repayment of term loan Is for 12 years with moratorium period of 3 years.

Basis of allocatlon of costs to different schoals

a) Salary costs for faculty are based on number of students for each programme with regulatory
parameters in faculty student ratio. For School of Engineering, non-teaching details are computed
based on regulatory norms. For other administrative and support people, costs have been allocated
to schools based on revenue generated by each school.

b) Academic costs are allocated based on input received fram different schools for FY 2023-24, and
for the years 2024-25 onwards, this is computed based on student numbers for each school, There
are some common costs which are allocated between schools based on revenue generation for
each schaol.

c) All other office & general expenses, research expenses, sports activities admission & branding

costs, repairs & maintenance and depreciation are allocated based on revenue generation each

school.

d) For schools requiring laboratories, infrastructure and other major set up, the relevant costs and

depreciation are separately allocated to these schaals.

Yearly Intake and student strength:

udent strength for the batch 2022-23 Is presently 107 (This was 116 as on March 31,2023).
student strength was estimated (PG admission will continue till Nov
admission patter and keeping in mind the projected student strength

g) Actual st
From the year 2023-24,

30,2023) at 510 based on

assumed to be around 8000 students and mare, ‘ |
the year 2024-25 is based on compelitive fee structure of other
ea structure for
f) Proposed F

. oo From the year 2024-25 onwards, increase is projected at an average 5% to 10% on
universities. ure for al the courses is kept low to cater to those students with merit but
voY basis. Fee struc al resources: Fee structure for existing students remains the same
having Inadequate ﬁ"i-"on of the course. In addition, the universily offers several schalarship
thraughoult t:9 :a‘::o'f students getting admitted on merit-cum-means basis, l/
schemes to 18Ke

Page\60f 9
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g) Reasonable and afft
S a' ordable hostel income is computed. Increase in hostel
.Increa : " ostel fees Is assu
sed hostel fee is applicable to all the studen fees Is assumed to be
ts, new as well as the i
existing

students.
h) Comparative Fee §
tructure ities i
with universities in Bangalorse and universities at nati
1onal level is placed

before the Commitiee and the Committee noted the same

Depreciation i i :
” :,]e is provided on Straight Line Method on the estimated useful [if
management. i s i
gement. Following table shows the estimated useful fife of the as: the assets as estimated
et under each cat
egory:

U S
seful Life (in years) Rate of Depreciation

Asset Category
Buildings
30

Lamppes A 33;3;,3?
Equipments 5 20' 3%
Lab Equipment 5 5 0'33:?
Furnitute 8 b
Vehicles 8 :‘qug;/;o
Librazy Books 1 bl
Utensils 1 1 00'00;:"
Electrcal Fircings 10 10 ;J(Jf'/ °

. a

advised for submission of Cost of Education Certificate, duly
: certified by Cha
rtered

The Commitiee
d Accountants. The same Is attached afong with the minut
es.

Accountantora Firm of Chartere

CapeXx Outloock

in view of the above |aunching of né
and increased faculty and staff stren

" programn?eg. substantial increase in student intake over th

gth, establishment of adequate Infrastructure will be of € years
- r, ra

f the university’s global campus at Devanahalli is underp:aymg

importance- I this regard. construction ©

is expected t0 be completed in g years' time. The construction will be carried out in 4 phas

1A, 1B,1C and 1D covering the following: = es, e.9., Phase
Library Block 'l/ ;

a) Administration &
b) 3 Academic Blocks

¢) Food Court

d) Girls' hostel and Boys' hostel

e) Faculty housing

f) Guest house

a) gports jnstitute

i
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Following table depicts the details of Capex over 8 years: -

Capital Expenditure Pfan [NRn Lakhs]
Particulars Areain 2021-
sgft 22| 203123 | 2023-24 | 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 102329]2029-30
Na of students . ; ™
116
A, Lond conts 5.150 S SN A S B s Ea
LR 5.150
I'8. Construaion Cost sauare F 500
3 eet 1452 14068| a41034] 9
. F €06
[Phase 1A 7.64861 | rasz| 3081|3021 2 PARD L 1AL MIeS1L 3536 1S
;""__:h,: :: :m,cnn 637| 18013 9606| 7500 SRR
 — __n
| Phase 10 8,00.000 17632 14145] 356 : ::;w
ko 3134462 17.682 | 14.146| 3536 SSJ:I
c. Computars & Soft - |
— 125 251 358|359 501 507 | &7
869 110
405
O Library beoks
T 5 a5 35 55 95 i 5
AT Wy 9 620
e | 169 129 150 3% 250
R S 3ss] we] 300f 1sas
F Resoarch Fquipment 124 e 100 180
6,602 ) =
e =] S EPTY T7] W T T T WX W71 T T T 30
. . 1,56 097
Observations and commendation of the Committee

es offered by the University should be futuristic. Example: B Com LLB

o The upcoming COUrS
ave a dedicated Research budget and should not be linked to revenu
e.

The University should h

L]
There should be dedicated funds for international programs.
o Faculty recruitment should be driven by westhiecs i b prodlioal mmsietenin e st
which they aré teaching.
» Itis suggested to record classroom sessions to assess the effectiveness of faculy.
o Impactonthe university if the dorors reduce thelr financial commitment.
anning for overseas student enrolment.

ity should begin P!
tion period of 2 years for faculty. The alignment of facuity mindset to

asted thoroughly before a permanent employment is confirmed

'

e The Univers
ested to have proba

e Itissugd
ty vision must be t

the Universi

| .__. [ Page 8 of 9} ,
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Approval
The Committee, after due deliberations, approved the following fee structure for the year: 2024-25 as
depicted below: -
Yearnise Schedale of Fees for 2014-25 Batth {Amountin Ry)
Conrse 2adyear Ird 4
L/COURSE Frit Year Coarse fee i year | Sihyesr Toal
SCHOO Daration comrsefea | counelee | conmafee |course fes | Course fes
Taiticn
fees Registratdon Tota] Fees
4y 75,000 3,000 80,00 75.000 15,000 75,000 108000
dym 1,50,000 5,000 1,55,000 1,50,000 150,000 1,50,000 405000
4ym 95,000 3,000 1,00,000 95,000 95,000 95,000 185000
2yrs 50,000 5000 95,000 90,000 184000
4ys 95,000 5000 100,00 osc00| 95000 95,000 18000
4ym 140,000 5,000 145,000 140000| 140000 140,000 i
2ym 1,30,000 5,000 135,000 130,000 254000
2y 1,10,000 3.000 1,15,000 1,010,000 225000
2y 1,75,000 5,000 130,000 175,000 . e
4yrs £,50,000 5000 155,000 150,000 150,000 1,50,000 05000
Zym 95.000 5,000 1,00,000 95,000 195,100
4y 1,00, 000 5,000 105,000 100,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 495000
2yms 3,00,000 5,000 3.03.000 300,000 £05.000
s 1,200 5,000 wooo | 1asoo|  i2s0m(  tas008| r2so00| ss000
Sy 140,000 5.000 145,000 140,000 140,000 140000 | 140000 | 785000
1yr 100,000 5000 L05,000 L0500
3,00,000 5000 3,05,000 300000| 350000 300000 g5
dyess: | 2 o 5000 2ss00| 230000 2;em| 25000 st
:;:L‘: 300000 5,000 aemo|  spasoo|  3mmo| 300000 i
2,50,000 5,000 2,55,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 800
A romst ﬁm 5000 255000 250000) 2%00] 25000 mm
dren | D asom 3,000 230,000 235000 21500 215000 25,000
£ &C-ComedK e | 2sa0m 5,000 2550001 2500001 250000| 230000 105,00
S ahand computet cieace enginesi-NET | ISER 5 e 5000 20001 22000 2ma0) 22500 90500
£ sence engineeriy-Comed| 4 <000 20500  zoaomo| 2mow| 20000 %0300
Bectrical and computer seience €08 dyears 2,00,000 <000 215,000 sooooe]  Zooem 200,00 i
gy - CON2 et A5 e 5000 2smo|  20000|  Zoew| 20000 S
Eogg - yea 000 00,000 H00
a,ﬁ- Mechanical/ Aerospace - Mpﬁu _ys_ﬂ,J | 200000 | sooo) 2w 20000} 200 2,00, 305,000 |
Engy - Mechanical / Agrospace - Come

pers of the Committee placed on record the appreciation for the efforts of

mem .
s the relevant data and information to support the approval

hai .
o ity team in bringing up all

the Chanakya Univers

of fee structure.

m ice Chancellor.
ting ended with a vote of thanks from the Vice C V
The mestin

(Chalrman)

|  Page 9}){9
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Annexure-6
Board of Governots Meeting
S1 No Details Date Venue
3one4 capital
3 | 3rd BOG Meeting 28.03.2023 partners
4 | 4th BOG Meeting 13.09.2023 Global campus
I—_’_’S_Mﬂ_ﬂ_ﬂ_________ 9.02.2024 Global campus

Board of Management Meeting

—ﬁm 2:00 PM | Chanakya University Global Campus

4 e
W - Chanakya University Global Campus

4
W"—_—r—_ Chanakya University Global Campus

4
31.05.202
4 |

___._.—-—'-'—_-_-_—- i
06.07.202 | - Offline

___—-—-'_'_—__ -
3:30 PM | Online

|4

| e
__’_.'—'"—”_’—’—'_-_ =
. —— " Academic Council

4.10.2023 Global Campus

il Meeting
X - (‘(:Lu'l(,]hl L
3rd \‘M—l}’f
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4 | 4th Academic Council Meeting | 10.01.2023 Online Mode
[’_,_’_’_‘F;e_Regulation Committee meetings
e e s
SL.No [_Detai!s Date Venue
t
01 & 14.06.2023 Jayanagar
FRC Bangalore
d
02 2" 20.11.2023 Global
FRC Campus
.' ’! i \;‘.lﬁ‘ \
! ‘.'_u_:_. |+ 1|
t‘&\‘ \-\ I
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Research and
Innovation
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